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Thereupon-- 

RICARDO MORALES NAVARETTE, 

was c a l l e d  a s  a w i t n e s a  on b e h a l f  o f  t h e  Defendan t s  

and ,  h a v i n g  been f i r s t  d u l y  sworn,  was examined and 

t e s t i f i e d  on h i s  o a t h  a s  f o l l o w s :  

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

9. Would you i d e n t i f y  y o u r s e l f  f o r  t h e  r e c o r d ,  

p l e a s e ?  

A R ica rdo  Mora les  N a v a r e t t e .  

0. A r e  you t h e  same p e r s o n  who h a s  been  i n  

d e p o s i t i o n  w i t h  M s .  Cohan, M r .  C a r h a r t ,  and me, among 

o t h e r s ,  s i n c e  t h i s  p a s t  F r i d a y ?  

A Yea, sir .  

Q Have you had t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  a i n c e  w e  

f i n i s h e d  y e s t e r d a y  a f t e r n o o n  t o  r e f lec t  upon a n y t h i n g  

t h a t  you s a i d  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t e s t i m o n y  y e s t e r d a y  

t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  you f e e l  i t  n e c e s s a r y  t o  c o r r e c t  o r  

modify a n y t h i n g  t h a t  you e a i d  y e s t e r d a y  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  

o f  t e s t i m o n y ?  

A Y e s ,  on two q u e s t i o n s  t h a t  were p u t  up t o  m e  

by a t  l e a s t  two q u e s t i o n s ,  I b e l i e v e ,  t h a t  w e r e  p u t  up 

t o  m e  by M r .  C a r h a r t  w i t h  r e g a r d  i f  I ,  d u r i n g  my a t a y  

i n  C a r a c a s ,  Venezue la ,  i f  I r e c r u i t  o r  a t t e m p t  t o  recru 

members o f  t h e  Cuban I n t e l l i g e n c e  S e r v i c e ,  which I do 
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r eca l l  t h a t  I answered  y e s ,  

I want  t o  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  a v e r y  

s e n s i t i v e  matter,  t h a t  t h a t  k i n d  o f  i n t e l l i g e n c e  c a n  

be g a t h e r e d  v e r y  e a s i l y  by  t h e  C o u n t e r  I n t e l l i g e n c e  

S e r v i c e ,  t h e  Communist Government o f  t h e  ~ e p u b l i c  o f  

Cuba,  and  t h a t  I d o  b e l i e v e  t h a t ,  a c c o r d i n g  t o  my 

o l d  p r o f e s s i o n ,  t h a t  t h o s e  two q u e s t i o n s  m i g h t  b e  

t a k e n  i n  t h e  c o n t e x t  o f  my p h i l o s o p h y  as  b e i n g  P u t  UP 

by M r .  C a r h a r t  p e r f o r m i n g  t h e  j o b  o f  a s u r r o g a t e .  

a F o r  whom? 

A T h a t ,  I would l i k e  t o  know, 

MR. CARHART: I n  o t h e r  words ,  you a r e  

a c c u s i n g  me of b e i n g  a s u r r o g a t e  f o r  somebody? 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  n o t  a c c u s i n g  you o f  any-  

t h i n g ,  M r .  C a r h a r t .  

MR. CARHART: L e t  m e  t e l l  you someth ing ,  

M r .  Mora l e s :  When i t  comes t i m e  f o r  you t o  

a c c u s e  me, t h a t  w i l l  be t h e  day.  

MS. COHAN: O b j e c t i o n ,  

M r .  C a r h a r t  and  M r .  Mora l e s ,  p l e a s e  r e m a i n  

c i v i l  

MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. 

MR. CARHART: T h a t  was c i v i l .  

THE WITNESS: T h a t  was c i v i l .  

MS. COHAN: L e t ' s  hope it d o e s n ' t  g e t  any  



worse ,  

MR, WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  t h e y  seem t o  have  

r e a c h e d  a n  agreement ,  

MS, COHAN: Okay, 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

0 Ricky,  l e t  m a  a s k  you t h i s :  Because w h i l e  

I c e r t a i n l y  want and need and i n t e n d  t o  examine you 

a s  t h o r o u g h l y  a s  I am a b l e  t o  on b e h a l f  o f  my c l i e n t ,  

I s t i l l  want t o  b e  f a i r  t o  you i n  y o u r  p o s t u r e  o r  

a s  a  w i t n e s s -  

lo 

11 

12 

13 

14 i n g  t o  r e f l e c t  t h e  p r e s e n c e  

c a p a c i t y  a. a  wi tness - -  

A What? 

(Ii I n  y o u r  c a p a c i t y  

A A l l  r i g h t .  

(r The r e c o r d  i s  go 

IS 11 of s e v e r a l  of t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  and /o r  members o f  t h e i r  

16 1 1  immedia te  f a m i l i e s  f o r  t h i s  s e s s i o n ,  and e s p e c i a l l y  

l7 b e c a u s e  we a r e  i n  what ,  a l t h o u g h  by t h e  S t a t e  I I 

2o I1 whethe r  t h e  p r e s e n c e  o f  t h e s e  p a r t i e s  t o  t h i s  a c t i o n  

18 

19 

21 I c a u s e s  you any  k i n d  o f  a  problem t h a t  migh t  b e a r  upon 

A t t o r n e y ' e  s t a n d a r d s  i s  a  l a v i s h ,  i s  n e v e r t h e l e s s  a  

r e l a t i v e l y  s m a l l  s p a c e ,  I want t o  know f o r  t h e  r e c o r d ,  

24 I1 any  one o f  them, 

22 

23 

your  a b i l i t y  t o  t e s t i f y  c o m f o r t a b l y  and open ly?  

A Not a s  f a r  a a  n o t  b e i n g  i n t e r r u p t e d  by 
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i s  g o i n g  t o  s a y  a word,  and you d o n ' t  have  t o  b e  

c o n c e r n e d  a b o u t  t h a t ,  b e c a u s e  between M r .  C a r h a r t  

and m e  and Ma. Cohan, w e  w i l l  r u n  t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n  t h e  

way t h e  law s a y s  i t  s h o u l d  b e  r u n ,  b u t  I want  t o  know 

w h e t h e r  t h e  mere f a c t  o f  the p r e s e n c e  o f  any  o f  t h e s e  

p e o p l e  o r  t h e  numbers o f  p e o p l e  who a r e  p r e s e n t  i n  a 

r e l a t i v e l y  s m a l l  room l i k e  t h i s ,  i f  e i t h e r  o f  t h o s e  

t h i n g s  i s  d i s t r a c t i n g  t o  you t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  i t  

would a f f e c t  y o u r  a b i l i t y  t o  r e f l e c t  and g i v e  a c c u r a t e  

t e s  tirnony? 

A Not s o  f a r .  

(r Okay. 

I f  it becomes a problem,  you l e t  m e  know, 

and w e  w i l l  t r y  t o  work i t  o u t ,  b e c a u s e  I want  t o  

make s u r e  t h a t  t h e  r e c o r d  c l e a r l y  s a y s  t h a t  n o t h i n g  

i s  t a k i n g  p l a c e  t h a t ,  you know, would impede o r  

o t h e r w i s e  a f f e c t  .you a b i l i t y  t o  r eca l l  and  g i v e  t e s t i -  

mony: okay?  

k T h a t  i s  c o r r e c t .  

0 Why d o n ' t  you and  I j u s t  work as t hough  

t h e r e  was nobody else p r e s e n t  e x c e p t  f o r  t h e  o t h e r  

l a w y e r s  and go  on t h a t  way? 

MS. COHAN: O b j e c t i o n .  S e l f - s e r v i n g .  

The re  are  o t h e r  p e o p l e  p r e s e n t .  M r .  Morale8 

w i l l  answer  q u e s t i o n s  p u t  t o  him. 
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BY MR. WILLIAMS t 

0. You t o l d  m e  y e s t e r d a y ,  Ricky,  t h a t  you have  

r e c a l l e d  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n  some way o r  a n o t h e r  i n  t h e  

bombing o f  t h e  home o f  John C l a r e n c e  Cook, and i t  was 

on t h a t  n o t e  t h a t  w e  r e c e s s e d .  

A Tha t  w e  were r e c e s s e d .  

a What was t h e  n a t u r e  o f  y o u r  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  

t h o s e  e p i s o d e s ,  and can you p u t - a  d a t e  t o  them t o  

b e g i n  w i t h ?  

A Okay. I am g o i n g  t o  answer t o  your  q u e s t i o n .  

Sometime a round  1967,  a f r i e n d  o f  mine by the  

name o f  L u i s  Posada ,  who was i n  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  moving 

t o  C a r a c a s ,  Yenezuela ,  t o  assume t h e  p o s i t i o n  o f  

i n s p e c t o r  of  DISIP a t  t h e  t i m e  o v e r  t h e r e ,  and  sub-  

s e c o n d a r y ,  h e  wound up by b e i n g  a commissar i n  c h a r g e  

o f  t h e  same d i v i s i o n  t h a t  l a t e r  on I took  o v e r ,  made 

a phone c a l l  t o  my home, and he  a sked  m e  f o r  some h e l p ,  

A c t u a l l y ,  was n o t  h e l p .  

He t o l d  m e  t h a t  he  h a s  some t e c h n i c a l  

problems,  problems w i t h  a c o u p l e  o f  bombings t h a t  h e  

h a s  per formed.  

One was o v e r  a t  T r e a s u r e  I s l a n d ,  which i s  

i n  t h e  North Bay V i l l a g e  a r e a ,  and t h e  second one- 

i t  was a case o f  s o r t  o f  mia taken  i d e n t i t y  when he  

bombed t h e  E p i c u r e  R e s t a u r a n t .  

9. Go ahead .  
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A H e  a sked  m e  i f  I c o u l d  d o  t h e  f i r s t  job.  

I t  was t h e  i n t e n d e d  t a r g e t - - a  c a r ,  and I t o l d  him, 

" L i s t e n ,  t h i s  i s  go ing  t o  be t h e  second t i m e ,  s o  i t ' s  

g o i n g  t o  b e  a l i t t l e  r i s k y , "  and  he  s a y ,  "Yes, I know, 

b u t  I c a n ' t  go i n t o  t h e  p l a a e  no more,"  s o  h e  p r o v i d e d  

w i t h  t h e  l o c a t i o n  o f  t h e  b u i l d i n g .  

H e  p r o v i d e d  m e  w i t h  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  

what  k i n d  o f  a c a r  i t  was and t h e  l i c e n s e  p l a t e  of  t h e  

c a r ,  and he  s a i d  t h a t  i f  I woutld need-he a s k e d  m e  i f  

I would need any  equipment  t o  pe r fo rm t h e  bombing of 

t h a t  c a r  and I s a i d ,  "No, I have  enough r e s o u r c e s  t o  

do  i t  on m y  own,' s o  1 went  o v e r  t h e r e ,  you know, and  

b l e w  t h e  c a r  a p a r t ,  

8 Whose c a r  was i t ?  

A Huh? 

91 Whose c a r  d i d  you know it t o  be? 

A According  t o  t h e  newspapers ,  it be longed  

t o  a book ie .  

0 By t h e  name o f?  

A I d o n ' t  remember t h e  name o f  t h e  p e r s o n ,  

(r Was it t h e  c a r  t h a t  M r ,  Posada h a s  t a r g e t e d  

f o r  you? 

A Y e s .  

Oi Did he  l e t  you know a f t e r w a r d s  t h a t  you had 

g o t t e n  t h e  r i g h t  c a r ?  
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A Y e s .  

(r You w e r e n ' t  p a i d  a n y t h i n g  f o r  t h a t ;  were 

YOU? 

A H e  s p l i t - - h e  t o l d  m e  I would b e  compensa ted ,  

and h e  s p l i t  800  w i t h  me. 

9. Did h e  t e l l  you t h e  purpoee  o f  t h e  bombing? 

A No. W e l l ,  t h e  purpose  was t o  d e s t r o y  a  c a r .  

(r Yes, w e l l  p a s t  t h a t .  I t  was o b v i o u s l y  t o  

have  some k i n d  o f  an  e f f e c t  on t h e  owner o f  t h e  c a r .  

Did h e  t e l l  you what t h e  e f f e c t  was? 

A Not a t  t h a t  moment. 

Then, a  few d a y s  a f t e r w a r d s - -  

0. L e t  m e  a s k  you t h i s  a b o u t  t h a t ,  Ricky,  beforc  

you go on: As I u n d e r s t a n d ,  t h e n ,  t h e  s i t u a t i p w w a s  or 

i n  which--was Posada a good f r i e n d  o f  yours?  

A Yee. 

Q So, t h e  s i t u a t i o n  was one i n  which a good 

f r i e n d  o f  y o u r s  came t o  you and said, *Do t h i s .  I t ' s  

a  bombingn? 

A *I a l r e a d y  f a i l e d . "  There  was m i a f i r e  o f  

some k i n d .  

Q And b e c a u s e  h e  was a f r i e n d  o f  y o u r s  and 

you wanted t o  h e l p  him o u t ,  you went  ahead  and d i d  it; 

i s  t h a t  e s s e n t i a l l y  i t ?  

A Tha t  i s  e s s e n t i a l .  



0. So, a  c o u p l e  o f  d a y s  a f t e r ,  a few d a y s  

a f t e r  t h a t -  I 
A A few day8 a f t e r  t h a t ,  whenever he  came 

a g a i n  t o  m e ,  and he r e f e r r e d  t o  t h e  E p i c u r e  a f f a i r ,  

and he  t o l d  m e  t h e  main t a r g e t  was A l f i e ' s  Newsstand, 

t h a t  i t  would r e q u i r e  some e x p e r t i s e  s i n c e  t h e  p u r p o s e  

was t o  p l a c e  a d e v i c e  i n s i d e  t h e  newss tand  t h a t  was 

b e i n g  r u n  by some b o o k i e ,  b u t  a t  t h e  same t i m e ,  t h a t  

t h i s  p l a c e  was supposed  t o  g e t  a  l o t  o f  damage, a f u l l  

m i r r o r  w a s  a l s o  t o  be  b roken  a p a r t ,  so t h e  b o o k i e  

o p e r a t i o n  would b e  uncovered ,  which w a s  b e i n g  pe r fo rme  , "i 
which i t  was g o i n g  t o  be per formed t h e r e ,  s o  by t h i s  

t i m e ,  I a s k e d  h i m ,  you know, " W e l l ,  t h i s - -you  know, 

t h a t  w i l l  r e q u i r e ,  you know, some i n s i d e  r e c o g n i z a n c e  

o f  t h e  place." 

H e  a l s o  mentioned t h a t  I would be compensated 

f o r  t h a t  job ,  and t h e n ,  I asked  him, " L i s t e n ,  L u i s ,  

you know, who's a f t e r  a l l  t h i s  bombings and t h i n g s , "  

and h e  s a i d  t h i s  f e l l o w  by t h e  name o f  Frank Rosenfe ld .  

0I Is t h a t  t h e  f e l l o w  a l s o  known as L e f t y ?  

A L a t e r  on ,  I found o u t  t h a t  h i s  nickname i s  

L e f t y ,  s o  I went  i n t o  A l f i e ' s ,  which was l o c a t e d  a t  

/ A l t o n  Road, and d i d  a  r e c o g n i z a n c e  from t h e  i n s i d e ,  I 
and s a w ,  t h a t  m i r r o r  p a r t i t i o n  t h a t  was t h e r e ,  t h a t  
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o f  whoever was t h e  owner o f  t h e  p l a c e  o r  whoever were 

t h e  p e o p l e  i n v o l v e d  i n  t h a t  k i n d  o f  o p e r a t i o n ,  and 

1 went back t o  L u i s  and I s a i d ,  "Lu i s ,  t h e  job  c a n  b e  

done ,  I can  do it t h e  way t h a t ,  you know, t h i s  f e l l o w ,  

you know, i s  r e q u i r i n g  you t o  do  i t ,  T h e r e ' s  a  l o t  o f  

cope  t h e r e ,  For  a l l  I c a n  t e l l  you,  i t ' s  because  i t ' s  

o b v i o u s  by t h i s  t i m e  t h a t  thereqwas  a c a s e  o f  mis taken  

i d e n t i t y  i n  t h e  E p i c u r e ,  which was l o c a t e d  e i t h e r  n e x t  

t o  it o r  some o t h e r  p l a c e s  i n  between,  and I would 

l i k e  t o  meet t h i e  guy and know who he  is--you know, 

who he  works for--you know, what t h e  i n t e n t i o n s  a r e ,  

you know, and t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  because  i t ' s  a  v e r y  

r i s k y  p r o p o s i t i o n  now," and he a e t  up a  meet ing  a t  t h e  

Fun F a i r  on t h e  Causeway and 7 9 t h  S t ree t ,  which I knew 

v e r y  w e l l ,  becauee  I used t o  p a r k  c a r s  a t  t h e  Luau 

R e s t a u r a n t  on 7 9 t h  S t r e e t ,  

0 T h i s  i s  g o i n g  back a  l o n g  way? 

A Y e s .  S idney  Mass was t h e  owner,  and I m e t  

L e f t y ,  and I t a l k e d  t o  him, 

H e  t o l d  m e  t h a t  h e  was from Jewish  e x t r a c t i o r  

t h a t  h e  was an  a f f i l i a t e  member o f  t h e  o r g a n i z e d  

crime f a m i l y  i n  Chicago,  t h a t  c u r r e n t l y  he  was t h e  

owner o r  co-owner o f  a  p l a c e  known by M u l t i p l y  S p o r t s  

o r  eomething l i k e  t h a t ,  t h a t  t h e y  w e r e  p u t t i n g  o u t  a  

s h e e t ,  s-h-e-e-t ,  where t h e  o r d e r s  f o r  gambl ing ,  o r  



w h a t e v e r ,  you know, r a c e  h o r s e s  o r  w h a t e v e r ,  you know, 

t h a t  h e  was n o t  e x a c t l y  a  c o n v t c t o r ,  b a s k e t b a l l  f i x e r ,  

b u t  he  p l e d  no c o n t e s t  t o  a  c h a r g e  o f  f i x i n g  a  b a s k e t -  

b a l l  game sometime i n  t h e  p a s t ,  t h a t  h e  was a  former  

s e r g e a n t  i n  t h e  Uni ted  S t a t e s  Army, t h a t  he f o u g h t  i n  

Korea,  t h a t  h e  was a n  u s h e r  i n  Chicago t h e a t e r ,  t h a t  

Chicago was h i s  k i n d  o f  a  town, and t h a t -  

MS, COHAN: T h a t ' s  a  song--My Kind o f  Town, 

Chicago Is, 

THE WITNESS: T h a t ' s  what h e  s a i d ,  and a t  
A 

t h e  t i m e ,  t h e r e  was a o r t  o f  a  b o o k i e  war go ign  on 

and I have  been recommended t o  him v e r y  h i g h l y  

by L u i s  a s  t h e  r i g h t  man t o  do t h a t  k i n d  o f  a ,  

. j you know, t r i c k y  job ,  you know, and h e  e x p l a i n e d  

t o  m e  t h a t  t h e  f e l l o w  r u n n i n g  A l f i e ' s  h a s  r e f u s e d  

t o  buy t h e  s h e e t  t h a t  t h e y  were p u t t i n g  o u t ,  

H e  a l a o  mentioned h i s  p a r t n e r ,  Solomon 

Green,  o r  Sam Green-owhatever was t h e  name, 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

(r L e f t y  ' 8 p a r t n e r ?  

A L e f t y ' e  p a r t n e r  i n  t h a t  M u l t i p l y s  S p o r t s  

System o r  wha tever  was t h e  name, and t h a t  he  d i d n ' t  

want anybody t o  g e t  h u r t ,  b u t  t h e  main purpose  waa t o  

drop t h a t  p a r t i t i o n ,  m i r r o r  p a r t i t i o n ,  o r  whatever  i t  

was, s o  by t h e  t i m e  when, you know, h e  t o l d  m e  t h a t  the 



had,  a v e r y  good u n d e r s t a n d i n g  w i t h  law enforcement  

o f f i c e r s  and t h i n q s  l i k e  t h a t ,  and t h a t  some p e o p l e  

were ,  you know, r e a d y  t o  go i n t o  t h e  p l a c e ,  you know, 

and make a r r e s t s ,  you know, a f t e r  t h e  bomb d e s t r o y e d  

t h a t  p a r t i t i o n  and uncovered t h e  o p e r a t i o n ;  t h a t  a l s o ,  

I mentioned t o  L e f t y ,  " L i s t e n ,  t h e  whole p l a c e  i s  

crowded w i t h  c o p s ,  you know. I t  i s  o b v i o u s ,  a c c o r d i n g  

t o  t h e  newspapers ,  t h a t  t h e y  a r e  e x p e c t i n g  A l f i e  t o  

g e t  h i t ,  s o  i t ' s  a v e r y  r i s k y  p r o p o s i t i o n , "  and L u i s  

s a i d ,  "Well ,  Ricky,  ydu can  do i t ,  You know, you have 

t h e  e x p e r t i s e , "  and I s a i d ,  "Well ,  okay,  I am g o i n g  t o  

g i v e  i t  a  t r y , "  s o  I d i d  i t ,  and e v e r y t h i n g  went 

a c c o r d i n g  t o  my p l a n s ,  

The p a r t i t i o n  was d e s t r o y e d  by t h e  b l a s t ,  

I p l a c e d  t h e  d e v i c e  i n  a  phone boo th  t h a t  

was i n s i d e  t h e  p l a c e .  

The p a r t i t i o n  came down, t h e  book ie  o p e r a t i o  

was uncovered ,  

(r What k i n d  o f  e x p l o s i v e  d e v i c e  d i d  you use?  

A Oh, I used C4 and t i m e  d e l a y  p e n c i l .  

Q Were you p a i d  f o r  t h a t ,  Ricky? 

A I was compensated w i t h  a thousand ,  

I d o n ' t  know how much L u i s  g o t  o u t  

(r Now, you p u t  t h i s  back* araundlin 1 

SO? 

o f  i t*  

96 7 .  .or 



A 1967,  y e s .  --- 

It  was-- i f  you go t o  t h e  p a p e r s ,  you w i l l  

know when t h e  whole a f f a i r  s t a r t e d .  

a I t h i n k  I have  a n  i n d e p e n d e n t  r e c o l l e c t i o n  

o f  it. 

A I b e l i e v e  t h a t  M r .  C a r h a r t  would have a  

v e r y  good r e c o l l e c t i o n  a b o u t  it.  

MR. CARHART: (Nodding i n  t h e  a f f i r m a t i v e .  ) 

BY MR WILLIAMS : 

. CJ How d o e s  t h e  t ime  w i t h  t h e  John C l a r e n c e  Cool 

ep i sode-  

A Oh, t h a t  came a f t e r w a r d s .  

A t  t h a t  t i m e ,  L u i s ,  who was i n  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  

l e a v i n g  t h e . c o u n t r y  t o  go t o  Venezuela  t o  work f o r  t h e  

DISIP, and he  was b u i l d i n g  homemade t i m e  d e l a y  p e n c i l s ,  

and he  had s o l d  a b o u t  e i g h t  o f  t h o s e  t o  L e f t y  and h e  

n e v e r  t o l d  m e  t h a t ,  s o  when L e f t y  showed m e  t h e  t i m e  

d e l a y  p e n c i l s ,  r i g h t  away, I t o l d  him, " L i s t e n ,  t h e s e  

a r e  n o t  t h e  o n e s ,  you know, t h a t  I know. I d o n ' t  know 

where t h i s  came from o r  w h a t e ~ e r , ~  s o  he  g o t  v e r y  

p i s s e d  o f f  w i t h  C u i s ,  b u t  by t h e  t i m e  t h a t  he  t r i e d  t o  

r e a c h  L u i s ,  L u i s  was a l r e a d y  i n  Venezuela .  

0 There was something wrong w i t h  t h e  p e n c i l s ;  

t h e y  w e r e n ' t  p r o p e r l y  made? 

A They were homemade. I mean, t h a t  means t h a t  



t h e y  c o u l d  go o f f ,  you know, a t  t h e  same t i m e  t h a t  

you c r u s h  t h e  c a p s u l e ,  o r  maybe f i v e  days a f t e r ,  l a t e r  

o r  t e n  d a y s  l a t e r ,  o r  w h a t e v e r ,  and i t  was s o r t  o f  a  

scam t h a t  L u i s  p u t  up t o  him, 

QI When you want  t o  g e t  t i m e  d e l a y  f u s e s  a round  

t h a t  p e r i o d  o f  t i m e - -  

A Not fuaes- t ime d e l a y  p e n c i l s ,  

(r P e n c i l s ,  

When you wanted t o  g e t  them, what  was y o u r  

s o u r c e  f o r  them? 

A Oh, t h e r e  w a s  a marke t  f o r  t h a t  a l l  o v e r  tow1 

(r Were t h e y ,  a t  t h e  t i m e ,  commerc ia l ly  manu- 

f a c t u r e d ?  

A The f i r a t  t i m e  t h a t  I aaw them w a s  d u r i n g  

t r a i n i n g  w i t h  t h e  company, 

0 What I a m  a s k i n g  i s  whe the r  t h e y  were 

commerc ia l ly  manufac tu red  by some m u n i t i o n s  company o r  

someth ing  l i k e  t h a t ?  

A I a m  n o t  aware o f  t h a t ,  

f)i Who made them i f  n o t  t h e  p e o p l e ?  

A I. don ' t know, 

I b e l i e v e  t h a t  somebody have  t o  make i t ,  

b u t  I d o n ' t  know t h e  name of t h e  company o r  where 

t h e y  a r e  b u i l t  o r  w h a t e v e r ,  

(r But ,  i n  any  e v e n t ,  t h e  s t u f f  t h a t  you saw 
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i n  Lefty's p o s s e s s i o n ,  which he a p p a r e n t l y  had g o t t e n  

from Posada,  was i n  your judgment, poo r ly  made and 

n o t  adequa te?  

A Not t h e  r e a l  McCoys, 

@ When you mentioned e a t  t o  L e f t y ,  d i d  you know 

a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  i t  would g e t  him i r r i t a t e d  w i t h  Posada 

A W e l l ,  I d i d n ' t  know t h a t  Posada was t h e  one 

who gave him t h o s e  p e n c i l s ,  and he  d i d n ' t  s ay  n o t h i n g ,  

H e  g o t  r e a l l y  p i s s e d  o f f ,  and he s a i d ,  "I 

would g e t  back t o  you l a t e r  o n , "  t h a t  he was going t o  

do some of  r e s e a r c h  on h i s  own, whatever ,  s o  f i n a l l y ,  

he came back t o  me, and he s a i d  t h a t ,  you know, "Your 

f r i e n d ,  Lu i s ,  you know, took m e ,  I have been h a d , "  

and I j u s t  laughed t o  t h a t ,  

0. Did Poaada e v e r  c o n f r o n t  you a f t e r w a r d s  and 

s a y ,  "Hey, c r e e p ,  you p l a n t e d  m e  up t o  L e f t y ,  " o r  

something l i k e  t h a t ?  

A W e l l ,  i n  Venezuela,  w e  t a l k  about  it. 

0 D i d  he e v e r  complain t h a t  you g o t  him i n  

t r o u b l e  t o  Lef ty?  

A N o ,  because  he  was i n - . t h e  p r o c e s s  t o  l e a v i n g  

t h e  c o u n t r y ,  s o  he  c o u l d n ' t  c a r e  less, 

(r How does  t h a t  t i e  i n t o  John Cla rence  Cook? 

A. Wait,  

I develope s o r t  o f  a f r i e n d s h i p  w i t h  L e f t y ,  



and I used  t o  go down w i t h  him t o  p l a c e s  where h e  was 

m e e t i n g  w i t h ,  you know, h i s  s o - c a l l e d  o r g a n i z e d  crime 

f r i e n d s ,  you know, 

I used  t o  go a l m o s t  e v e r y  n i g h t  w i t h  him, 

you know, f o r  d i n n e r  i n  C a p r a ' s  R e s t a u r a n t ,  

Q . When h e  t o l d  you t h a t  h e  was a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  

o r g a n i z e d  crime o u t  o f  Chicago,  d i d  you b e l i e v e  him? 

A W e l l ,  i t  was i n t e r e s t i n g  anyway, I t  was s o r t  

o f  f a s c i n a t i n g .  I n e v e r  been exposed  t o  t h a t  k i n d  o f  

a  s i t u a t i o n ,  

I had-he was a J e w ,  and  he t o l d  m e  t h a t  h e  

was a f f i l i a t e d - - t h a t  a c t u a l l y ,  h e  was n o t  a  S p a g h e t t i ,  

b u t  h e  was-- 

MS, COHAN: Is t h i s  t h e  way you p h r a s e d  i t?  

THE WITNESS: But ,  h e  was meeting-Douglas,  

f o r  C h r i s t ' s  s a k e ,  I mean, d o n ' t  c r a c k  m e  up ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

Q I am n o t  s a y i n g  a  word, I am j u s t  l i s t e n i n g ,  

A H e  was,  you know, mee t ing  w i t h  him, and t h e y  

h o l d  t h e i r  l i t t l e  m e e t i n g s ,  you know. 

To me, i t  was f a s c i n a t i n g  t o  see a l l  t h o s e  

t h i n g s  happen ing ,  

(r Did you e v e r  g e t  t o  t h e  s p o t  where you were 

s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  h e  was r e a l l y  o r g a n i z e d  crime connec ted  

and n o t  j u s t  g i v i n g  you a  l i n e ?  
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A No, d e f i n i t e l y .  

I was t r u l y  s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  ha  was r e a l l y  

c o n n e c t e d  w i t h  I t a l i a n s ,  

(r Okay, 

John  C l a r e n c e  Cook? 

A Okay, They were f r i e n d s ,  They were f r i e n d s  

a p p a r e n t l y ,  and  h e  i n t r o d u c e d  m e  t o  John i n  one  o f  

t h o s e  d i n n e r s  t h a t  w e  used  t o  have a t  The P l a c e  f o r  

S t e a k  a t  7 9 t h  S t r e e t ,  and j u s t  happened t h a t  John  was 

l i v i n g  c l o s e  by t h e  place--you know, n o t  a c r o s s  t h e  
6 

Bay, b u t  i f  you are g o i n g  down on Biacayne  Bou leva rd  

hnd 8 3 r d  o r  8 l s t - - w h a t e v e r  was h i s  a d d r e s s ,  eve rybody  

knows where h i s  a d d r e s s  was,  and J o h n ' s  w i f e  was a 

fo rmer  bunny i n  a Playboy C1ub3, t h a t  John  w a s  t h e  

b e s t  j e w e l r y  t h i e f  i n  t h e  whole n a t i o n ,  and  master of  

d i s g u i s e  and  t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  s o  t h e r e  came a t i m e  

when L e f t y  c a l l e d  m e  up one  n i g h t ,  and h e  w a s  l i v i n g  

a round  t h a t  San S o u c i  ne ighborhood i n  Nor th  M i a m i - -  

it was a l i n e  o f  townhouses  t h e r e ,  and  t h e r e  w a s ,  a t  

t h e  end  o f  t h e  l i n e  on t h e  back  p a r t  o f  t h a t  l i n e  o f  

townhouses ,  t h e r e  was a 7-Eleven, and w e  u s e d  t h e  

p u b l i c  phone t h e r e  as means and ways o f  communicat ions  

and I went  down t h e r e ,  and h e  s a i d ,  " L i s t e n ,  you know, 

I want  t o  bomb John C l a r e n c e  Cook's h o u s e , "  and  s o ,  

go down and case, you know, and he  t o l d  me, "There i s  
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some money was t a k e n  o u t  o f  t h e  p l a c e ,  t h a t ,  you know, 

many war s t o r i e s ,  you know t h a t  you know, c a n n o t  

r e l a t e  i t  t o  you i n  t h e  p r o p e r  manner b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  

y e a r s  have p a s s e d ,  s o  I d i d  t h e  f i r s t  j ob  t h e r e ,  

91 L e t  m e  ask you t h i s :  L e f t y  made i t  p l a i n  t o  

you t h a t  f o r  some r e a s o n  o r  a n o t h e r ,  wha teve r  t h e  

r e a s o n s  were ,  he was a n g r y  a t  Cook o r  wanted t o  d o  

someth ing  t o  u p s e t  Cook i n  some way? 

A W e l l ,  i f  you c a l l  t o  b e  u p s e t ,  a b o u t  you 

know, b e i n g  bombed, you know, 

0 T h a t  would do it ,  I t h i n k ,  

A. T h a t  w i l l  d o  i t ,  

QI Works e v e r y  t ime?  

A Y e s ,  

(r Did you and L e f t y  t a l k  a b o u t  y o u r  g e t t i n g  

p a i d  f o r  i t ?  

A O f  c o u r s e ,  

I asked him because  s i n c e  he  was n o t  p r o v i d i r  

f o r  equipment ,  I was t o  have t o  u s e  a l o t  o f  equipment  

t o  g e t  it o v e r  w i t h ,  

I have  t o  us'e a s t a n d a r d  c h a r g e ,  I would 

employ t h e  u s e  o f  pr ime c o r d  on d i f f e r e n t  c h a r g e s ,  

(r So,  what c o n v e r s a t i o n s  d i d  you have? What 

was f i n a l l y  worked o u t  w i t h  Rosenfe ld  a b o u t  g e t t i n g  

p a i d ?  
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A A thousand.  

8 Was t h a t  t o  i n c l u d e  your  equfpment? 

A. Y e s ,  i n c l u d e  e v e r y t h i n g ,  

8 Did L e f t y  t e l l  you a n y t h i n g  a b o u t ,  o r  d i d  

you know a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  Cook's f a m i l y  s i t u a t i o n  a s i d e  

from h i s  w i f e ?  

Did h e  have k i d s ,  d i d  h e  have dogs ,  were 

t h e r e  o t h e r  p e o p l e  l i v i n g  i n  t h e  house - - tha t  s o r t  o f  

t h i n g ?  

A No, I found o u t  l a t e r ,  I know t h a t  h e  had 

g o t  a  w i f e ,  

(r When L e f t y  made it a p p a r e n t  t o  you-did h e  

t e l l  you t h i s  t i m e  a round t h a t  he  d i d n ' t  want anybody 

t o  b e  h u r t  a g a i n ?  

A. Y e s ,  S p e c i f i c a l l y ,  he  p o i n t e d  t o  m e  t h e  

C a d i l l a c ,  t h e  f r o n t  o f  t h e  house ,  and t h e  Donzi Boat 

and t h e  c a r p o r t  o r  t h e  p a r t i t i o n  t h a t  was t h e r e ,  

(r Did t h a t  pose  any k i n d  o f  a  t e c h n i c a l  problem 

f o r  you t o  f a s h i o n  and l o c a t e  an  e x p l o s i v e  d e v i c e  t h a t  

would do t h o s e  t h i n g s ,  b u t  n o t  go f u r t h e r ,  o r  was 

t h a t  something  w i t h i n  t h e  a r e a  o f  your  e x p e r t i s e ?  

A T h a t  i s  i n  t h e  a r e a  o f  my e x p e r t i s e ,  I know 

how t o  do  t h a t  w i t h o u t  c a u s i n g  b o d i l y  i n j u r y  t o  some- 

body, 

(r So t h a t  you were s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  you w e r e h ' t  



r u n n i n g  a r i s k  of d o i n g  p h y s i c a l  harm t o  f o l k s  i f  t h a t  

w a s n ? t  y o u r  i n t e n t ;  c o r r e c t ?  

A D e f i n i t e l y  n o t  , 

P T h a t  was something  t h a t  you c o u l d  h a n d l e ,  

b e c a u s e  you knew how to--  

A O h ,  y e s ,  

0. ( C o n t i n u i n g )  -- make t h a t  k i n d  o f  a  bomb? 

A O h ,  y e s ,  

(r A l l  r i g h t ,  

A So,  t h e  --ff rst job waa done ,  and- 

0 Do you remember when t h a t  was,  Ricky? 

A No, 

1967,  Douglas ,  I ' m  s o r r y ,  I d o n ' t  have a  

e p e a i f i c  d a t e  f o r  t h a t .  1967.  

Q What happened a f t e r  t h a t ?  

A W e l l ,  t h a t  was done sometime a round  t h r e e  

o ' c l o c k  i n  t h e  morning,  and t h e  n e x t  d a y ,  a t  t h r e e  

o ' c l o c k  i n  t h e  a f t e r n o o n ,  L e f t y  was a g a i n  on t h e  h o r n  

a s k i n g  f o r  me, and h e  e a i d  t h a t  he  wan t s  t h e  b o a t ,  

a l s o ,  t h a t  was marooned i n  a  c a n a l  on t h e  back o f  t h e  

house ,  

The b o a t  went  by t h e  name o f  MARIANNE o r  

something  because  r e l a t e d  t o  John C l a r e n c e  Cook- 

0 Wife? 

A W i f e ,  



I b e l i e v e  it was Marianne,  and  s o ,  1 

w e n t . o v e r  t o  t h e  p l a c e .  

I make a reci  of t h e  a r e a ,  

MR, CARRARTr A what  of t h e  a r e a ?  

THE WITNESS: Rdcognizance.  

BY MR, WILLIAMS t 

'3 What i s  t h e  t e r m  t h a t  you used?  

A A rec i ,  r e c o g n i z a n c e  o f  t h e  a r e a ,  

I went  back  t o  him, and I s a i d ,  "I w i l l  have  

t o  s w i m  t o  g e t  o v e r  t h e r e , "  and h e  s a i d ,  "But I want  

t h e  b o a t , "  and I s a i d ,  "There i s  a l o t  o f  c o p s  o v e r  

t h e r e t W  and h e  a a i d ,  "Don ' t  wor ry ,  You a r e  g o i n g  t o  

have  s u p p o r t  from p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s ,  you know, t h a t  a r e  

f r i e n d l y  w i t h  u s ,  who a r e  g o i n g  t o  s e c u r e  t h e  a r e a  f o r  

you , "  and I s a i d ,  " W e l l ,  you know, b u t  t h e  o t h e r  n o t -  

s o - f r i e n d l y  p o l i c e  f o r c e s ,  you know, xi~ight  b e  a round  

them, o r  w h a t e v e r , "  and h e  s a i d ,  "Don' t  worry ,  Go 

ahead  and d o  i t m - - t h a t  you have  s u p p o r t  from f r i e n d l y  

f o r c e s ,  

Q Did L e f t y  t e l l  you; I mean, i n  terms t h a t  

were c l e a r  t o  you, t h a t  you c o u l d  c o u n t  upon s u p p o r t  

from p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s  i n  t h e  v i c i n i t y ?  .. 

A I a l r e a d y  knew who was g o i n g  t o  b e  my 

s u p p o r t  i n  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s .  

(r How d i d  you know t h a t ?  
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Q Who was i t  t h a t  h e  was t a l k i n g  a b o u t ?  

k L i e u t e n a n t  Black ,  

k Because I had s e e n  him mee t ing  w i t h  L e f t y  

2 

3 

0 C h a r l i e  Black? 

and w i t h  Peanuta  C a c c i a t o r e  and a l o t  o f  o t h e r  

I t a l i a n s  o v e r  C a p r a ' a ,  

A Y e s ,  a i r .  

0 From t h e  P u b l i c  S a f e t y - D e p a r t m e n t ?  

A Y e s ,  sir. 

Oi  id you c o n f i r m  t h a t  on your  own; I mean, 

e i t h e r  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  of  t h i s  second bombing o f  t h e  

Cook a r e a  o r  from some o t h e r  way? 

D i d  you e v e n t u a l l y  o b t a i n  o b j e c t i v e  

i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  Black was, i n  f a c t ,  c o v e r i n g  L e f t y ?  

A Y e s ,  

0 Go ahead.  

L e t  m e  a s k  you t h i s :  Did Rosenfe ld  t e l l  

you why it was t h a t  h e  wanted t o  come back on Cook 

t h e  second t i m e  s o  q u i c k l y ?  

A No. 

I t  w a s - - l i s t e n ,  L e f t y  i s  a  v a r y  e n j o y a b l e  

c h a r a c t e r ,  you know, and h e  was s o  e l a t e d  w i t h ,  you 

know, t h e  f i rs t  j o b ,  t h a t  he wan t s  t o  show, you know, 

how h i s  power, H e  s a i d  t h a t  Borne New York f a m i l i e s  

w e r e  compla in ing  a b o u t  what t h e  Chicago p e o p l e  were 
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d o i n g ,  t h a t  h e  was g o i n g  t o  t e a c h  them a  l e s s o n ,  you 

know, and  t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  and h e  was r i d i n g  on 

Cloud Nine,  and so, t h a t  same n i g h t ,  I went  o v e r  t o  a n  

open s p a c e  t h a t  i s  no  l o n g e r  t h e r e  anymore b e c a u s e  

t h e r e  i s  c o n s t r u c t i o n  have  been b u i l t  up t h e r e ,  and  

I jumped i n t o  t h e  Bay, and 1 s w a m  w i t h  f i v e  pounds o f  

C 4 ,  a  t i m e  d e l a y  p e n c i l  i n s i d e  a  p r o p h y l a c t i c ,  and  a  

c o r d  t h a t  I h o l d ,  you know, w i t h  my t e e t h ,  and you knoo 

I swam v e r y  s l o w l y  t h r o u g h  t h e  c a n a l .  

There  w a s  a row o f  houses  on t h a t  one  s i d e ,  

and t h e n ,  I f i n a l l y ,  r e a c h e d  t h e  MARIANNE, which by 

t h i s  t i m e ,  haa been  o u t  o f  t h e  w a t e r .  It  was--you knos 

0. On d a v i t s ?  

A R i g h t ,  t h o s e  t h i n g s  t h e r e ,  and I used  t o  

remember t h e r e  w a s  a  houere a c r o s s  t h e  c a n a l ,  and  t h e r e  

was3a l a d y  t h e r e ,  you know, washing  her c h i n a ,  and I 

have  t o  w a i t  a b o u t  4 5  m i n u t e s  u n t i l  she f i n i s h  o f f ,  

b e c a u s e ,  you know, I d i d n ' t  want  any f l y i n g  g l a s s  t o  

h u r t  t h e  woman, s o  I remain  t h e r e  f o r  a b o u t  4 5  m i n u t e s  

you know, u n t i l ,  you know, t h i s  l a d y ,  you know, 

f i n i s h e d  i n  t h e  k i t c h e n ,  and I dumped it, t h e  d e v i c e ,  

and I s w a m  away from t h e  p l a c e .  

a WAa t h e  l a d y  c l e a n i n g  t h e  c h i n a  a t  a n o t h e r  

house ;  n o t  a t  Cook's  house?  

A, N O ,  n o t  a t  Cook's house .  I t  w a s  a c r o s s  from 
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a f t e r  t h e  bombings g i v i n g  a h e l p i n g  hand t o  h i s  f r i e n d ,  

(r Tha t  was L e f t y ' s  way o f  l e t t i n g  Cook know 

t h a t -  

A No, no,  L e t  m e  keep  g o i n g  w i t h ,  you know, 

my a s s o c i a t i o n  w i t h  L e f t y  and what happened t h e r e .  

I n  between o r  a f t e r ,  you know, a l l  t h a t  

mess t h a t  I am t a l k i n g  a b o u t ,  one day ,  L e f t y  g o t  on the 

h o r n  a g a i n  w i t h  me--I mean, t e l e p h o n e ,  and h e  asked  m e  

t o  meet him a t  t h e  f r o n t  t h e r e ,  

I d o n l t  know i f  t h i s  happened b e f o r e  John 

was bombed o r  a f t e r w a r d s ;  okay,  b u t  i t ' s  p a r t  o f  

what  happened t h e r e ,  and h e  s a y s  t h a t  one  o f  J o h n ' s  

k i d s  h a s  been t h r e a t e n e d  by somebody who h a s ,  you know, 

t h r e a t e n e d  t h e  k i d  w i t h  d e a t h  o r  something  l i k e  t h a t  

o r  t h e  w i f e ,  o r  you know, somebody t h a t  was r e a l l y  

p i s s e d  o f f ,  t h a t  h e  was, you know, b e i n g  h a r a s s e d  by 

somebody and t h e n  you know, John wan t s  t o  send a  

message back ,  you know, i n  t h e  form o f  a  bomb t o  

somebody, b u t  t h a t  t h e y  have t o  w a i t  f o r  a  p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r  who w i l l  come up w i t h  t h e  a d d r e s s  o f  t h e  

i n t e n d e d  t a r g e t ,  s o  w e  were w a i t i n g  i n  d i f f e r e n t  

cars t h e r e ,  

9. Is t h a t  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  somebody t h a t  you 

knew? 

A When t h e  s o - c a l l e d  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  a r r i v e d ,  



I i d e n t i f i e d  him immedia te ly ,  

0 Who was i t? 

A Guil lerrno Zamora . 
(r Did you know Zamora b e f o r e  t h a t ?  

A I n  f a c t ,  yes, because  he  a r r e s t e d  A l b e r t o  

Pe r ez ,  who was one  o f  my f r i e n d s  i n  t h e  Congo a f t e r  

w e  r e t u r n e d ,  and on s o r t  o f  a t r a f f i c  c h a r g e s ,  and I 

was t h e  i n t e r p r e t e r  f o r  A l b e r t o  Perez  i n  c o u r t ,  

H e  was r e p r e s e n t e d  by an  a t t o r n e y  by t h e  

name o f  Richard  B a r r e t t  who was--do you know who I am 

t a l k i n g  abou t?  

0. I have hea rd  t h e  name, 

A, Okay, That  was t h e  a t t o r n e y  t h a t  was 

recommended t o  A l b e r t o  by t h e  C I A ,  

MR, CARHART: By whom? 

THE WITNESS: By t h e  C e n t r a l  I n t e l l i g e n c e  

Agency, and M r .  B a r r e t t ,  o r  whatever  was h i s  

name, mentioned t h a t  he  was O f f i c e r  Zamorags 

company commander w h i l e  Zamora was s e r v i n g  i n  

t h e  Marine Corp, t h a t  he was h i s  company 

commander, t h a t  he  w i l l  have no problems d e a l i n g  

w i t h  M r .  A l b e r t o  Pe r ez '  t r a f f i c  c h a r g e s .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

(r So, your  Fun P 8 E r  w i t h  L e f t y  Rosenfe ld  

and Gui l l e rmo Zamora's t r a f f i c  c h a r g e s  come up, and 



gave Lefty an address: correct? 

A Not to me, To- 

@ No, to Lefty? 

A To 3ohn"Clarence Cook. 

Q- I thought--I'm sorry. 

A. We were sitting in different cars, and 

you haven't asked me who was who with whom, 

0. All right, 

It was Lefty who had called you to meet at 

Fun Fair: correct? 

A Right, 

0 By what you say, obviously Cook was also 

there? 

A Yes ,  Cook was there, 

0 In his own car? 

A Yes, 

Q (Continuing) --or in a different car from-- 

A Y e s ,  everybody has a car, 

Q Who else was there besides the three of you, 

and when he arrived, Guillermo Zamora? 

A. And nobody else. 

Well, there was the customers at the Fun 

Fair, you know, 

01 Obviously, 

So, when Zamora arrived, it was for the 
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p u r p o s e  o f  g i v i n g  a n  a d d r e s s  t o  L e f t y  and Cook? 

A Not t o  Cook, 

QI Okay. 

A H e  n e v e r  came o v e r  t o  o u r  c a r .  I mean, 

by t h i s  t i m e ,  L e f t y  and myself--we were i n  o n e  c a r ,  

and John  was i n  h i s  c a r ,  

MR. CARHART: And Zamora i s  i n  s t i l l  a  

t h i r d  car? 

THE WITNESS: Oh, y e s ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

a And went  o v e r  t o  John  C l a r e n c e  Cook? 

A T h a t  i s  r i g h t ,  

Cr And o b v i o u s l y ,  had some c o n v e r s a t i o n s ?  

A The two o f  them w e r e  i n s i d e  t h e  same c a r ,  

I dodged,  you know, 

8 You ducked?  

A Yes, d e f i n i t e l y ,  

0 You d i d n ' t  want  Zamora t o  see you? 

A No, j u s t  i n  c a s e  t h a t  he  migh t  r e c o g n i z e  

me, b e c a u s e  h e  h a s  seen me, you know, d u r i n g  t h a t  

t r a f f i c  p r o c e e d i n g  i n  c o u r t ,  o r  w h a t e v e r ,  

0. How l o n g  d i d  t h a t  c o n v e r s a t i o n  l a s t - - a  

b r i e f  p e r i o d  o f  t i m e ?  

A A b r i e f  p e r i o d  o f  t i m e ,  

0. When Zamora l e f t ,  d i d  you ,  Cook, and 
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Rosenfe ld  g e t  back t o g e t h e r  a g a i n ?  

A No, Cook walked o v e r  t o  t h e  c a r  t h a t  w e  

were i n ,  and L e f t y  s t e p p e d  o u t  o f  t h e  c a r ,  t a l k e d  t o  

him. 

0. When L e f t y  g o t  back i n  t h e  c a r ,  d i d  you t h e n -  
I 

A No, b o t h  o f  them came back i n t o  t h e  c a r ,  

and John said, g o t : - t h e  a d d r e s s , "  and he gave  i t  t o  

(r Do you remember who t h e  t a r g e t  was, and what  

t h e  a d d r e s s  was? 

A Wait ,  I g o t  t h e  a d d r e s s ,  and h e  s a y s ,  

"I want  t o  be  t h i s  t h i n g  done t o n i g h t , "  and I s a i d ,  

" W e l l ,  b u t  what  you want?"  H e  s a i d ,  " J u s t  t h row eome- 

t h i n g  the re - -a  hand g r e n a d e ,  a  p i e c e  o f  e x p l o s i v e .  I 

want  an e x p l o s i o n  o v e r  t h i s  f e l l o w ' s  house , "  s o  you 

know, I r a n  down t o  my--me, you know, t h r o u g h  t h i s  

L i t t l e  Havana, w h a t e v e r ,  and p i c k e d  up t h e  e x p l o s i v e  

d e v i c e ,  

I went  o v e r ,  

0. ~ i b  you p i c k  up something  t h a t  was readymade 

o r  d i d  you f a s h i o n  your  own? 

A I -- j u s t  grabbed a  p i e c e  o f  C 4 ,  a s a f e t y  f u s e ,  

and a  b l a s t i n g  c a p ,  and I went  o v e r  t o  t h a t  a d d r e s s ,  

you know, and th rew i t  i n  t h e  f r o n t  y a r d ,  t h e  f r o n t  l a  

o f  t h e  house.  

Next d a y ,  I found o u t  from t h e  p a p e r s  t h a t  
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i t  was t h e  house belonged t o  a Miami p o l i c e  o f f i c e r .  

(r Who? 

A (No r e sponse .  ) 

Q You d o n ' t  r e c a l l ?  

k I d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  

There was even a  reward p u t  o u t  f o r  t h e  

apprehens ion  and c o n v i c t i o n  of  t h e  bomber. 

(r Was anybody h u r t ?  

A Nobody. 

8 Was it ,  i n  any e v e n t ,  t h e  r i g h t  house f o r  

Cookvs  purpoaes?  

A Yea. 

Q Waa i t ,  i n  f a c t ,  t h e  house? 

A W e l l ,  a c c o r d i n g  t o  t h e  p a p e r s ,  ye s .  

F Were you p a i d  f o r  t h a t ?  

h I w a g  damn u p s e t .  

O f  c o u r s e ,  I charged  t h e  guy 500 r i g h t  on t h  

s p o t ,  because ,  you know, I took o f f  and s a i d ,  "Well ,  

l e t  m e  have 500, you know, because  s i n c e  you want ,  you 

know, i s  r e a l l y  no cheap,  you know, t h e  m a t e r i a l s  a r e  

r e a l l y  go ing  t o  be  used and t h e  t i m e . *  

MR. CARHART: Ask him what he  was u p s e t  

abou t .  

THE WITNESS: Okay. J u s t -  

MS. COHANz F i n i s h  t h e  answer ,  and t h e n  you 
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can  g e t  some c o f f e e .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

(r Why were you u p s e t ?  

A About t h e  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r .  

(Off t h e  r e c o r d ,  ) 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

(r What u p s e t  you a b o u t  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  i t  was a  

pol iceman? 

A A p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  and a l i t t l e  g i r l  t h a t  was 

i n s i d e  t h e  house.  

0. W e l l ,  d i d  your  u p s e t  becailse t h e  guy who 

was i n  t h e  house  was a p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  a r i s e  from t h e  

f a c t  t h a t  s i n c e  i t  was a  pol iceman,  you asaumed t h a t  

t h e r e  would be more p r e s s u r e  p u t  o u t  t o  f i n d  t h e  

p e r s o n  who p l a c e d  t h e  bomb; w a a n ' t  i t ?  

A I t  was t h e  f a c t  t h a t  I had s e e n  a p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r  g i v i n g  t h e  a d d r e s s  o f  a n o t h e r  pol iceman,  and 

t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e r e  was a  l i t t l e  g i r l  i n s i d e  t h e  houee 

0. I can u n d e r s t a n d  t h e  l i t t l e  g i r l  p a r t ,  

o b v i o u s l y ,  

What I am t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  o u t  i s  what 

b o t h e r e d  you a b o u t  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  i t .waa i  a  p o l i c e m a n ' s  

house? Was i t  t h a t  you j u s t  t r i e d  t o  make your  

b u s i n e s s  n o t  t o  bomb p o l i c e ,  o r  because  you assumed 

t h a t  i t  was a  po l i ceman ' s  house ,  t h a t  t h e r e  would be 



more p r e s s u r e  b r o u g h t  t o  bear t o  f i n d  t h e  p e r s o n  who 

p l a n t e d  t h e  d e v i c e ?  

A Not b e c a u s e  it was g o i n g  t o  be more p r e s s u r e  

b e c a u s e  e i n c e  I have  known L e f t y ' s  a s s o c i a t i o n ,  w i t h ,  

you know, l a w  en fo rcement  i n d i v i d u a l s  and t h i n g s  l i k e  

t h a t ,  when I went back t o  L e f t y  and I made, you know, 

known t o  him, how u p s e t  I was, h e  t o l d  m e  n o t  t o  worry 

t h a t  i t  was a n  a u t h o r i z e d  h i t ,  t h a t  h e  had checked i t  

p r e v i o u s l y ,  

I compla ined  t o  h i m  t h a t  t h i s  i s  t h e  f i r s t  

t i m e  t h a t  you a c t u a l l y  have  n e v e r  t e l l  me, you know, 
I 

who t h e  i n t e n d e d  t a r g e t  w a s ,  you know, and why, and  

t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  and I a l s o  made c l e a r l y  t o  him t h a t  

if I had known t h a t  it was a p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  i n v o l v e d ,  

you know, I s h o u l d  n e v e r  have done it. 

(r A t  t h a t  t i m e ,  d i d  you have  some code  o r  

some p e r s o n a l  v a l u e  o r  commitment t h a t  made you a v o i d  

d o i n g  harm t o  t h e  p e r s o n s  o r  p r o p e r t i e s  o f  law 

e n f o r c e m e n t  o f f i c e r s ?  

A Oh, d e f i n i t e l y ,  and I s t i l l  have.  

(r T h a t ,  I g u e s s ,  i s  b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  c l o s e  

working  r e l a t i o n s h i p  t h a t  you have a lways  had w i t h  

l a w  en fo rcement  p e o p l e ?  

A I d i d n ' t  have  a c l o s e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  l a w  

en fo rcement  p e o p l e  i n  1967.  



The o n l y  r e l a t i o n s h i p  t h a t  I had was w i t h  

t h e  company p r e v i o u s l y .  

(J Then, what was i t ,  Ricky? 

A I mean, law enforcement ,  t h e y  d o  t h e i r  job ,  

you know, 1 mean, i t ' s  o u t  o f  c o n t e x t - - a n y t h i n g  l i k e  

t h a t ,  

(r Now, you t o l d  u s  o f  t h a t  e p i s o d e  i n  c o n n e c t i f  

w i t h  your  d e s c r i b i n g  t o  u s  your  a s s o c i a t i o n  w i t h  L e f t y  

Rosenfe ld ,  b u t  I had asked you a b o u t  t h e  purpose  o f  

e x p l o d i n g  a  d e v i c e  l i k e  t h a t  i f  t h e  r e c i p i e n t  o r  t h e  

t a r g e t  d i d n ' t  know where it came from, Do you r e c a l l  

I asked you a  w h i l e  ago  i n  t h a t  c o n t e x t ,  o f  one  p e r s o n  

.wanting t o  g e t  r evenge  a g a i n a t  o r  harm a n o t h e r  o r  warn 

a n o t h e r  o r  t h r e a t e n  o r  i n t i m i d a t e  o r  something  l i k e  

t h a t ,  I had a s k e d  you i f  it was c o r r e c t  t h a t  it d i d n ' t  

make any e e n s e  t o  d o  t h a t  u n l e s s  t h e  r e c i p i e n t  o r  t h e  

t a r g e t  e v e n t u a l l y  knew where i t  came from; huh? 

A R i g h t ,  s o  e v e n t u a l l y ,  L e f t y ,  o n e  day ,  t o l d  

me, "Go by John ' s  p l a c e ,  you know, and t e l l  him t h a t  

you were t h e  one who bombed him," 

0 T h a t  was e a s y  f o r  him t o  s a y ,  

A Y e s ,  and you know, i t  was n o t  s o  e a s y  f o r  

m e  t o  d o  i t ,  b u t  I d i d  it .  

8 Why? What d i d  L e f t y  t e l l  you h i s  r e a s o n  was 

f o r  w a n t i n g  you t o  do  t h a t ?  
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A So b e c a u s e  Anthony E s p i l o t r o  was f l y i n g  

down from Chicago.  Al so  known a s  t h e  Ant o r  t h e  

Thing ,  o r  wha teve r .  He's a  v e r y  s h o r t  fellow--was 

f l y i n g  i n  from Chicago.  

01 Was h e  I t a l i a n ?  

A Yes, h e  i s  and was a s s o c i a t e d  with--1 j u s t  

c a n ' t  r e c a l l  t h e  name o f  it. I t  was ~ i f i - - t h e  n i c k -  

name o f  t h a t  I t a l i a n - - F e l i x  A l d e r e z i o  ( p h o n e t i c ) ,  o r  

someth ing  l i k e  t h a t .  

H e  was f l y i n g  i n ,  and t h e y  were g o i n g  t o  

have  John t o  a g r e e  t o  s p l i t  t h e  p e r c e n t a g e  o f  w h a t e v e r ,  

you know, j o b s ,  s c o r e s  h e  was p u l l i n g  o u t ,  t o  s p l i t  thc  

h e  was g o i n g  t o  make, t h a t  h e  was go ing  t o  b e  a b l e  t o  

work h i s  p r o f e s s i o n  a s  a  jewel  t h f b f  i n  Vegas,  where he 

was b a r r e d  from working ,  

8 Cook was? 

A Y e s ,  Cook wag, 

(r Go a h e a d ,  s i r ?  

A So, I was t h e  messenger  boy f o r  Cook t o  t e l l  

him I am t h e  bomber, and I knocked a t  t h e  d o o r  o f  t h e  

house, I went  i n t o ,  h e  was i n  t h e  company o f  M r .  

Manson H i l l ,  and he  was g i v i n g ,  o r  Cook was g i v i n g  t o  

him a s a d d l e  h o r s e ,  because  h e  was g o i n g  back t o  

Georg ia  o r  wherever  h e  was g o i n g .  

9 L e t  m e  see i f  I u n d e r s t a n d  t h i s ,  Ricky.  



Were you t o l d  by Rosenfe ld  o r  by somebody 

else t h e  purpose  o f  t h e  bomb? Were you t o l d  by t h e  

man from Chicago,  h i m s e l f ,  o r  were you t o l d  t h a t ?  

A N O ,  no,  no . 
I found o u t  l a t e r .  When Tony came down from 

Chicago,  we had a  mee t ing .  

Q. And i t  was Tony who t o l d  you t h i s  f e l l o w  

from Chicago- 

/ /  A Y e s .  
9 

F I f  I u n d e r s t a n d  you c o r r e c t l y ,  t h e  p u r p o s e  o 1 
l1 /I t h e  bomb a t  Cook's p l a c e  was t o  l e t  Cook know t h a t  t h e  

l2 Il p e o p l e  from Chicago who were go ing  t o ,  i n  e f f e c t ,  g i v e  

l3 I him p e r m i s s i o n  t o  work i n  Las Vegas meant b u s i n e s s  

11 and s h o u l d  be t a k e n  s e r i o u s l y ,  and he  s h o u l d  do  what  
14 I 

t h e y  e x p e c t e d  o f  him; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ,  and n o t  g e t  c u t e ;  
15 

II i s  t h a t  a b o u t  i t ?  
16 

l7 11 . A  No, he had t o  s p l i t  e v e r y  s c o r e ,  t h a t  t h e y  

l8 I1 w i l l  g i v e  him a  p e r c e n t a g e ,  and t h e y  w i l l  show him 

l9 I1 t h e  t a r g e t s  and e v e r y t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t .  

20 I Q And your  bomb was t o  l e t  him know t h a t  t h o s e  

I1 I p e o p l e  were r e a l  f o l k s  and meant b u s i n e s s ,  j u s t  t o  

22 11 k e e p  him i n  tow? 

A No, he  knew a l l  o f  them from b e f o r e ,  s o  

24 I1 s i n c e  t o  me, what I g a t h e r e d  a f t e r - d o n ' t  s i d e t r a c k  

m e  o f f  my r e c o l l e c t i o n .  
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0 I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  have you e x p l a i n  someth ing ,  

now, Ricky ,  s o  t h a t  I u n d e r s t a n d  i t .  

A There  was a m e e t i n g  between Tony, L e f t y ,  

Cook, and myse l f  p r e s e n t  now; okay ,  f i r s t ,  i t  w a s  

L e f t y ,  Tony and m y s e l f .  Then, I went  o v e r  t o  c o o k ' s  

house .  I bumped i n t o  t h i s  guy H i l l ,  and  I r e l a y e d  t h e  

message t o  John t h a t  I was t h e  bomber, and s o  f o r t h .  

0. What e l se  d i d  you t e l l  him b e s i d e s  t h e  

f a c t  t h a t  you w e r e  t h e  bomber? 

k T h a t  t h e r e  was t h i s  guy Tony a l r e a d y  i n  town 

w i t h  an  a s s o r t e d ,  you know, squad  o f  I t a l i a n s  which ,  

i n  f a c t ,  t h e r e  were, and t h a t  t h e y  were r e q u e s t i n g  a  

m e e t i n g  w i t h  him, and  t h a t  he  w a s  supposed  t o  go down 

w i t h  m e  t o  t h a t  mee t ing .  

Q. What d i d  h e  s a y  when you t o l d  him t h a t  you 

were t h e  o n e  who bombed h i s  house ,  h i s  b o a t ?  

A. Noth ing .  

H e  went  back  t o  Manson R i l l ,  and t o l d  

Manson H i l l ,  " T h e r e ' s  my bomber." 

The guy p i c k e d  up t h e  s a d d l e  h o r s e  and  

l e f t  t h e  h o u s e ,  and  w e  d r o v e  back t o - - i t  was t h e  row 

o f  townhouses  a t  t h e  end  o f  townhouses  was some 

k i d  t h a t  was L e f t y ' s  e t o c k b r o k e r  t h a t  b e c a u s e  t h e y  

w e r e  i n v e s t i n g  h e a v i l y  a t  t h e  t i m e  i n  Lums, i n  t h e  

Lums food  c h a i n .  They were i n v e s t i n g  h e a v i l y  on ,  so 
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t h e r e  was t h i s  k i d  was a  b r o k e r  f o r  L e f t y ,  and t h a t ' s  

t h e  p l a c e  where t h e  mee t ing  was h e l d .  

0 You s a i d  t h a t  Manson H i l l  l e f t  w i t h  a 

s a d d l e  h o r s e .  Did you mean a h o r s e  s a d d l e ?  

A A h o r s e  s a d d l e ,  s a d d l e  h o r s e .  

Qi There  w a s n ' t  a h o r s e  i n  t h e  house ;  it w a s  a  

s a d d l e  f o r  a  h o r s e ?  

A Y e s .  

Q Okay. 

MR. CARHART: What was t h e  name o f  t h e  

s t o c k b r o k e r ?  

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  remember. 

H e  was--his o f f i c e  was i n  Bal  Harbour.  

I t  w a s  a young f e l l o w .  

MR. CARHART t Cuban? 

THE WITNESS: No, no ,  no. American. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS t 

(r Then, you a t t e n d e d  a meet ing  w i t h  Tony and 

L e f t y  and Cook? 

A Yes. 

MR. WILLIAMS: A l l  r i g h t .  I t h i n k  t h a t  

t h a t ' s  a good p l a c e  t o  recess f o r  l u n c h ,  and 

w e l l ,  u n l e s s  t h e r e  a r e  o t h e r  t h i n g s  t h a t  you 

want t o  d o  now, w e  w i l l  g e t  i n t o  t h e  mee t ing  

when w e  come back,  because  o t h e r w i s e ,  w e  w i l l  



be a n o t h e r  h a l f  h o u r ,  4 5  m i n u t e s .  

M S .  COHAN: F i n e .  

MR. WILLIAMS: TWO O ' C ~ O C ~ ?  

MS 0 COHAN t TWO o 'Clock l 

MR. CARHART: Okay w i t h  m e .  

(Whereupon, a  s h o r t  recess was t a k e n ,  

a f t e r  which t h e  f o l l o w i n g  p r o c e e d i n g s  were had:)  

(The w i t n e s s  was sworn.)  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

0 M r ,  Mora le s ,  when w e  recessed f o r  l u n c h ,  

you were i n  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  t e l l i n g  u s  of a m e e t i n g  

t h a t  you a t t e n d e d  a t  t h e  home o f  a  s t o c k b r o k e r ,  whose 

name you c o u l d n ' t  r e c a l l ,  t h a t  was a t t e n d e d  by 

L e f t y  R o s e n f e l d ,  John  C l a r e n c e  Cook, t h e  one  from 

Chicago  who you refer t o  a s  Tony, and y o u r s e l f ?  

A Anthony E s p i l o t r o .  

(r Now, as  I u n d e r s t a n d  i t ,  t h e  p u r p o s e  o f  t h e  

m e e t i n g  was t o  d i s c u s s  among M r .  E s p i l o t r o  and  

M r .  R o s e n f e l d  and M r .  Cook, M r .  Cook's p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  

t h e  L a s  Vegas b u r g l a r y  b u s i n e s s ?  

A More o r  less,  

(r You were p r e s e n t  k i n d  o f  what--in t h e  r o l e  o f  

e n f o r c e r  o r  p h y s i c a l  p r e s e n c e  t o  remind Cook o f  t h e  

p r i o r  bombings and what  c o u l d  happen i n  t h e  f u t u r e - -  

t h a t  k i n d  o f  t h i n g ?  
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MS. COHAN: P l e a s e  n o t e  my c o n t i n u i n g  

o b j e c t i o n  t o  r e l e v a n c y  and m a t e r i a l i t y ,  

YOU may answer ,  

THE WITNESS: I was t h e r e  b e c a u s e  I d r o v e  

M r ,  Cook t o  t h a t  p l a c e ,  you know, and I j u s t  s a t  

t h e r e ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q You knew what  t h e  o r d e r  o f  b u s i n e s s  was a t  

t h e  mee t ing ;  d i d n ' t  you ,  o r  what  i t  was t o  be?  

A Not o f f h a n d ,  Not p r e v i o u s l y ,  b u t  I c o u l d  

imag ine  by t h i s  t i m e  t h a t -  

0. D i d  you p a r t i a i p a t e  a t  a l l  i n  t h e  c o n v e r s a t i c  

A NO 0 

I was-they went  i n t o ,  you know, a  room, and 

t h e y  pushed m e  o u t  o f  t h e  mee t ing .  

QI Were t h e r e  any  more i n c i d e n t s  o r  e p i s o d e s  

of bombing8 e i t h e r  w i t h  r e g a r d  t o  t h e  p l a c i n g  o f  any  

bombs o r  t h e  f a b r i c a t i o n  o f  any  bombs by you t h a t  you 

c a n  r e c a l l  i n  a d d i t i o n  t o  t h o s e  which you have  been  

d e s c r i b i n g  t o  u s  o v e r  t h e  l a s t  c o u p l e  o f  days?  

A No, Douglas ,  

9 T h a t ' s  i t ?  

A T h a t ' s  i t ,  

MS. COHAN : You sound d i s a p p o i n t e d .  

THE WITNESS: You sound d i s a p p o i n t e d .  



MR. WILLIAMS: Oh, I s h o u l d  have  t h o u g h t  

t h a t  a pe r son  of your  r e k n o w n , ' t h e r e  would b e  

more t h a n  t h a t .  T h a t ' s  o n l y  1 5  o r  2 0 ,  Ricky. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Now t h a t  w e  have c a t e g o r i z e d  

o r  c a t a l o g u e d  a l l  o f  t h e  bombing e p i s o d e s  t h a t  you 

c a n  r eca l l  i n  which you p a r t i c i p a t e d ,  t e l l  me, p l e a s e ,  

s i r ,  how and when you f i r s t  came t o  know Diosdado Diaz ,  

t h e  l e a d  i n v e s t i g a t o r  i n  t h i s  case, t h e  gent leman who 

is  s e a t e d  beh ind  you t o  your  l e f t ?  

A Way back i n  1973,  I s p o t t e d  a  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  

d r i v i n g  a  p a t r o l  c a r  a round a  n i g h t c l u b  by t h e  name o f  

M y  O the r  Place, which was l o c a t e d  on 2 7 t h  Avenue 

s o u t h  o f  D i x i e  Highway a c r o s s  t h e  Lady Bug, and s i n c e  

h e  was p a t r o l l i n g  t h e  a r e a  and he waa v e r y  w e l l  known 

among cus tomers  t h e r e ,  I j u s t  happened t o  f i n d  o u t  t h a t  

t h e r e  w a s  a  Diosdado who was r e l a t e d  t o  a n o t h e r  p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r  by t h e  name o f  Orlando M a r t i n e z ,  

Q What d i d  you l e a r n  t h e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  t o  be?  

A Cousins ,  

Q W e ' l l  t a l k  some more lake.  on a b o u t  t h e  

development  o f  your  a c q u a i n t a n c e s h i p  w i t h  O f f i c e r  Diaz ,  

b u t  f o r  t h e  t i m e  b e i n g ,  i s  it a c c u r a t e  t o  s a y  t h a t  

by t h e  f a l l  of 1 9 8 0 ,  i n  September,  Oc tober ,  November 

o f  1980,  you had g o t t e n  t o  t h e  s p o t  where you had 
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e s t a b l i s h e d  a good c l o s e  working r a p p o r t  w i t h  O f f i c e r  

Diaz? 

A You a r e  p u t t i n g  words i n  my mouth, 

9 D e s c r i b e  it t o  m e  how you would? How would 

you d e s c r i b e  y o u r  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  O f f i c e r  Diaz? 

A When? 

0 I n  t h e  f a l l  o f  1 9 8 0 ,  f a l l  g o i n g  i n t o  w i n t e r  

o f  1 9 8 0 ,  September ,  O c t o b e r ,  November, December o f  1981 

How would you d e s c r i b e  y o u r  r e l a t i o n s h i p ?  

A W e l l ,  i n  November, a c t u a l l y ,  I was supplying 

h im w i t h  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n ,  

(r H e r o t a  what  I need t o  know, Ricky:  I want  

you t o  t e l l  m e  whe the r  it i s  a c c u r a t e  t o  say t h a t ,  

a t  t h a t  p o i n t  i n  t i m e ,  y o u r  r e l a t i o n s h i p -  w i t h  O f f i c e r  

Diaz was a  c o n f i d e n t i a l  one  b a s e d  upon mutua l  t r u s t -  

you and  O f f i c e r  Diaz? Would you say t h a t ?  

A Y e s ,  

Q Had you g o t t e n  t o  t h e  a p o t  where,  b e c a u s e  

o f  y o u r  c o n t a c t s  w i t h  him o v e r  t h e  y e a r s  r e g a r d l e s s  o f  

how t h o s e  c o n t a c t s  o c c u r r e d ,  you had a  good working 

r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  him? 

A. I n e v e r  worked w i t h  him, 

(? You know what  I mean. 

A I n e v e r  worked w i t h  him, 

MS. COHAN: O b j e c t i o n .  H e  w i l l  answer y o u r  
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q u e s t i o n s  and n o t  impute meaning t o  words o t h e r  

t h a n  t h a t  t h e y  have ,  

MR, WILLIAMS: A l l  r i g h t ,  I am t r y i n g  t o  

make t h e  t h i n g  f low a l i t t l e  b i t ,  

MS. COHAN: Then, a s k  him what h i s  r e l a t i o n -  

s h i p  was. 

MR. WILLIAMS: I t  d i d n ' t  work t h e  f i r s t  t i m e ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

(r Ricky,  w a s  y o u r  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  O f f i c e r  

Diaz such  t h a t ,  on a day-to-day b a s i s ,  you a l l  were 

a b l e  t o  g e t  a l o n g  w i t h  e a c h  o t h e r ?  

A, Everyt ime t h a t  I saw him, I g o t  a l o n g  w e l l  

w i t h  him. 

(r When you were p r o v i d i n g  i n f o r m a t i o n  t o  him 

e i t h e r  on t h i s  c a s e  o r  i n  any o t h e r  i n s t a n c e  t h a t  you 

had g i v e n  him i n f o r m a t i o n  i n  t h e  p a s t ,  d i d  you f e e l  

a b l e  t o  be f o r t h r i g h t  and h o n e s t  w i t h  him? 

A Of c o u r ~ e .  

(r Did you f e e l  t h e  need t o  p r o t e c t  y o u r s e l f  

by w i t h h o l d i n g  from him i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  was p e r t i n e n .  

t o  t h e  s u b j e c t  you were d i s c u s s i n g ,  b u t  which might  

p u t  you i n  a  bad l i g h t ?  

A I n e v e r  w i t h h o l d  a n y t h i n g  from him. 

0. Did you have t h e  f e e l i n g  o r  t h e  unders t and in t  

based  upon what you c o u l d  o b j e c t i v e l y  p e r c e i v e  t h a t  
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h e  waa f o r t h r i g h t  w i t h  YOU? 

A Y e s .  

(r Is it  . a c c u r a t e  t o  s a y  t h a t  a t  t h e  t i m e  

t h a t  w e  a r e  d i s c u s s i n g  now, f a l l  i n t o  w i n t e r  o f  1980,  

t h a t  you t r u s t e d  O f f i c e r  Diaz? 

A Y e s ,  

Q. Based upon what you c o u l d  p e r c e i v e  by t h e  

way i n  which he d e a l t  w i t h  you,  d i d  he  t r u s t  you? 

A T h a t ' s  f o r  him t o  know, and f o r  m e  t o  f i n d  

o u t  . 
01 My q u e e t i o n  t o  you i s  baaed upon what you 

c o u l d  p e r c e i v e  a b o h t ' t h e  way i n  which he d e a l t  w i t h  

you,  were h i s  a c t i o n s  and h i s  words such  t h a t  t h e y  

conveyed t o  you-- 

A Oh, y e s ,  

0 ( C o n t i n u i n g )  -- t h a t  h e  t r u s t e d  you? 

A Oh, y e s ,  now I g o t  t h e  meaning o f  your  

q u e s t i o n ,  Dodglps. Y e s ,  t h e  anewer i s  yea .  

(r Okay. T e l l  m e  i f  you c o u l d ,  p l e a s e ,  Ricky,  

s t a r t i n g  w i t h  t h o s e  v a r i o u s  bombing e p i s o d e s  t h a t  you 

have d e s c r i b e d  f o r  us  o v e r  t h e  l a s t  c o u p l e  o f  d a y s  

which of them you have p r e v i o u s l y  d e s c r i b e d  o r  d i s -  

c l o s e d  t o  O f f i c e r  Diaz? 

A Say t h a t  a g a i n .  



(Whereupon, t h e  q u e s t i o n  r e f e r r e d  t o  was 

r e a d  i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d  by t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r . )  

THE WITNESS: W i l l  you s e t  a t i m e  and 

d a t e  a b o u t  p r e v i o u s  d i s c l o s i n g  b e c a u s e ,  you 

know, I have d i s c u s s e d  w i t h  him s o  many t h i n g s ,  

you know, s i n c e  November up t o  now. A r e  you 

~ a y i n g  b e f o r e  November o r  a f t e r  ~ o v e m b e r ?  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

0 Yea, p r i o r  t o  November? 

A I n e v e r  d i s c u s s e d ,  you know, s p e c i f i c  

bombings w i t h  Diosdado Diaz.  

0 Is it  y o u r  t e s t i m o n y ,  t h e n ,  s ir ,  t h a t  t o  

your  knowledge, t h e  f i r s t  t i m e  t h a t  h e  h a s  h e a r d  you 

make reference t o  em d e s c r i b e  any o f  t h e s e  &fi&danta 

t h a t  you have  been t e l l i n g  u s  a b o u t  o v e r  t h e  l a s t  

c o u p l e  o f  d a y s  h a s  been a s  he  s a t  h e r e  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  

o f  t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n ?  

A NO,  sir. 

M S .  COHAN: O b j e c t i o n .  M i s s t a t e m e n t  o f  

t e s t i m o n y .  

H e  s a i d  p r i o r  t o  November o f  1980. 

MR. WILLIAMS: M S .  Cohan, M r .  Mora les  i s  

q u i t e  a b l e  t o  h a n d l e  h i m a e l f .  

M S .  COHAN: M r .  Wi l l i ams ,  I w i l l  c o n t i n u e  

t o  make o b j e c t i o n s  as r e q u i r e d .  
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MR, WILLIAMS: The w i t n e s s  d o e s n ' t  need any 

h e l p ,  H e  d o e s n ' t  need any c o a c h i n g .  

THE WITNESS: S h e ' s  n o t  c o a c h i n g  me, 

MR, WILLIAMS: Make a l e g a l  o b j e c t i o n ,  

and t r y  n o t  t o  h e l p  t h e  w i t n e s s  o u t ,  

Go ahead ,  M r ,  Morales .  

THE WITNESS: Not p r i o r .  

I a l r e a d y  answered your  q u e s t i o n  t h a t  p r i o r  

t o  November, 1980,  o r  September,  o r  wha tever  t h a t  

d a t e ,  t h a t  he  l e a r n e d  a b o u t  what I a l r e a d y  t e a t i &  

f i e d  s o  f a r ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

(r Was t h e r e  any t i m e  d u r i n g  Oc tober  o r  

November o f  1980  o r  any t i m e  b e f o r e  t h a t  when O f f i c e r  

Diaz s a i d  t o  you something  t o  t h i s  e f f e c t ]  .Since 

you a r e  g o i n g  t o  be o u r  i n f o r m a n t  i n  t h i s  case b e c a u s e  

i t  might  become p e r t i n e n t  a t  some l a t e r  p o i n t  i n  t i m e ,  

w e  need t o  know a b o u t  e v e r y t h i n g  i n  your  background"? 

Did h e  s a y  a n y t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t  t o  YOU? 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l ,  

0 Has t h e r e  ever been a  t i m e  when e i t h e r  

O f f i c e r  Diaz o r  any o t h e r  C i t y  of Miami P o l i c e  O f f i c e r  

who i a  p r e s e n t l y  i n v o l v e d  i n  any way i n  t h i s  i n v e s t i -  

g a t i o n  h a s  a sked  you t o  d e s c r i b e  t o  him o r  h e r  a l l  of 

t h e  v a r i o u s  acts o r  e p i s o d e s  i n  your  background t h a t  a  
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t h i r d  p e r s o n  might  r e f e r  t o  o r  d e s c r i b e  a s  b e i n g  

c r i m i n a l ?  Has t h e r e  e v e r  been such  a  t i m e ?  

A O f  c o u r s e .  I went i n t o  d e b r i e f i n g  by 

Rina Cohan h e r e .  

(r My q u e s t i o n  t o  you a t  t h e  moment, however, 

was whe the r  t h e r e  h a s  e v e r  beon a  t i m e  when any p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r  w i t h  t h e  C i t y  o f  Miami P o l i c e  Department 

o r  any o t h e r  p o l i c e  depar tmen t  k h a t  h a s  a n y t h i n g  

d i r e c t l y  t o  do  w i t h  t h f s  ser ies  o f  c a s e s ,  T i c k - ~ a l k s ,  

h a s  e v e r  a sked  you t o  describe t o  him o r  t o  her -  

p o l i c e  o f f i c e r - - t h e  v a r i o u s  e p i s o d e s  o r  e v e n t s  i n  y o u r  

background t h a t  a  t h i r d  person might  r e g a r d  a s  b e i n g  

c r i m i n a l ?  

A M r .  Wi l l i ams ,  n o t  b e f o r e  I went i n t o  d i r e c t  

c o n t a c t  w i t h  t h e  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e .  

(r A l l  r i g h t .  

Now, i n s o f a r  a s  M s .  Cohan i s  concerned ,  i s  

ahe  t h e  o n l y ,  o r  i n  any e v e n t ,  p r inc ip ih l  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  

o f  t h e  Dade County S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e  w i t h  whom 

you have had c o n t a c t  c o n c e r n i n g  t h i s  c a s e ,  t h i s  =ick- 

T a l k s  c a s e ?  

A W e l l ,  I have s e e n  a l o t  o f  A e s i s t a n t s .  

9 T h a t ' s  why I s a i d  p r i n c i p a l l y .  

A P r i n c i p a l ,  oh ,  y e s ,  

(r It h a s  been M s .  Cohan e i t h e r  e x c l u s i v e l y  o r  



Q! 

p r i n c i p a l l y  from t h e  t ime  t h a t  your  p a r t i c i p a t i o n 3 n  

t h e  c a s e  f i r s t  s t a r t e d ?  

A Y e s .  

Q Did t h e r e  e v e r  come a t i m e  when M s .  Cohan 

s a i d  t o  you t h a t ,  i n  o r d e r  f o r  t h e  p r o s e c u t i o n  t o  

d e t e r m i n e  t h e  u s a b i l i t y  of  y o u r  e v i d e n c e  o r  t h e  

a b i l i t y  t o  use you as a w i t n e s s  a t  a l l ,  i t  would be 

n e c e s s a r y  f o r  you t o  make a  f u l l  d i s c l o s u r e  t o  .;c o r  

some o t h e r  law enforcement  o f f i c e r  o f  a l l  o f  t h o  zcts 

a -  e p i s o d e s  i n  your  past t h a t  a t h i r d  p e r s o n  might  

r e g a r d  a s  c r i m i n a l ?  

M S .  COHAN : O b j e c t i o n ,  5.~0-r!f product. 

YOU may answer.  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

0 Do you have  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  Ricky? 

A Douglas ,  I made a purpose  o f  rnyself.:when I 

went i n t o - t h e  f i r s t  t i m e  t h a t  I went t o  see MS. 

Cohan, t o  g e t  t h e  whole t h i n g  o u t  o f  my c h e s t .  

9 Here's my q u e s t i o n :  L e t ' s  h a n d l e  t h e  ques-  

t i o n  first, and t h e n ,  w e  w i l l  t a k e  any e x p l a n a t i o n  t h a l  

it needs .  

Was t h e r e  a t i m e  when MS. Cohan t o l d  you 

t h a t  i t  would be  n e c e s s a r y  f o r  you t o  d i s c l o s e  t o  h e r  

a l l  o f  t h e  e p i s o d e s  i n y o u r  p a s t  o r  i n  your  background 

t h a t  might  be r e g a r d e d  by a t h i r d  p e r s o n  a s  c r i m i n a l ?  



A It  was a t i m e  when I t o l d  h e r  t h a t  I was 

g o i n g  t o  t e l l  e v e r y t h i n g  i n  m y  p a s t .  

a But ,  s h e  d i d n ' t  a s k  you t o ?  

A Nope. 

QI It was something  t h a t  you v o l u n t e e r e d  on 

your  own? 

A Y e s .  

01 When i n  p o i n t  o f  t i m e  was t h a t ,  Ricky? 

A The f i r s t  t i m e  t h a t  I m e t  Rina Cohan a t  

t h e  Hol iday  Inn .  

0. Do you remember t h e  date o f  t h e  

Ricky? 

A I t m a  a m a t t e r  of p u b l i c  r e c o r d .  

mee t ing ,  

(r W e l l ,  I ' m  trying t o  f i n d  o u t ,  though,  i f  

you have an  i n d e p e n d e n t  r e c o l l e c t i o n ~ o f  t h e  d a t e ?  

A W e l l ,  no.  

0 W e l l ,  who was p r e s e n t  a t  t h e  mee t ing ,  

Ricky? 

A There  waa a c o u r t  r e p o r t e r ,  Ms. Cohan, 

S e r g e a n t  Raul M a r t i n e z ,  and D.C. Diaz.  

Ricky, l e t  m e  show you a copy of a  t r a n s c r i p f  

o r  a c t u a l l y ,  j u s t  t h e  f i r s t  page o f  a copy o f  a  

t r a n s c r i p t  t h a t  t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  ha8 p r e v i o u s l y  fu rn i shec  

t o  m e  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  d e p o s i t i o n  d i s c o v e r y  (handing  t c  
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M s .  Cohan) . 
MS. COHAN: I do re3pond t o  v e r b a l  c u e s  

(handing t o  t h e  w i tne sa  b. 

BY MR. W I L L I A M S  

(r (Cont inu ing)  -- and see i f ,  l o o k i n g  a t  t h a t  

cove r  page ,  r e f r e s h e s  your  r e c o l l e c t i o n .  

Was t h e r e  more t h a n  one o c c a s i o n  when you 

m e t  Ma, Cohan i n  t h e  p r e sence  o f  O f f i c e r  Diaz,  Sergean t  

Mar t i nez ,  and a  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r  i n  t h e  Holiday Inn ,  o r  

was t h i s  t h e  o n l y  occasion? 

A, I t  was t h e  o n l y  occas ion .  

(r The d a t e  o f  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t  w a s  r e f l e c t e d  as 

b e i n g  December 1 6 ,  1980. Does t h a t  r e f r e s h  your  

r e c o l l e c t i o n ,  t e l l  you t h a t  t h a t  i s  an a c c u r a t e  d a t e ,  

a s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t ?  

A I b e l i e v e  s o .  

0 Then, w a s  it i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t h i s  meet ing  

t h a t  you made t h e  d i s c l o e u r e s  t o  MS. Cohan t h a t  you hav 

been d e s c r i b i n g  t o  u s  a moment ago? 

A Y e s ,  s ir .  

0 Did you, a i r ,  t e l l  h e r  o f  a l l  o f  t h e s e  

v a r i o u s  i n c i d e n t s  o r  e p i s o d e s  o f  bombing o r  p a r t i c i p a t j  

i n  bombing t h a t  you have d e s c r i b e d  t o  u s  ove r  t h e  l a s t  

coup le  o f  daya? 

MS. COHAN: Ob jec t i on .  The r e c o r d  speaks  
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f o r  i t s e l f ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS : 

0 Did you,  s i r ?  

h The r e c o r d  s p e a k s  f o r  i t s e l f .  

Oc N o ,  W e  d o n ' t  have t o  worry a b o u t  t h e  r e c o r d  

b e c a u s e  t h a t ' s  a l e g a l  o b j e c t i o n  and i n  regards to- 

A I b e l i e v e  t h a t  I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  

q u e s t i o n .  

You know, i f  y o u s t a r t  a s k i n g  t h e  same 

q u e s t i o n s  a g a i n ,  and s h e  s t a r t s  o b j e c t i n g  t o  q u e s t i o n s  

t h a t  you p u t  up, t h e n ,  you g e t  m e  o f f  b a l a n c e ,  s o  you 

know, I w i l l  a p p r e c i a t e  f o r  b o t h  o f  you n o t  t o  g e t  m e  

o f f  b a l a n c e  and off t r a c k .  

0 A r e  you o f f  b a l a n c e ,  now, Ricky? 

A R i g h t ,  

F Do you want  t o  t a k e  a b o u t  f i v e  minu tes?  

A N O ,  I want t o  hear t h e  same q u e s t i o n  t h a t  

I w a s  a s k e d  b e f o r e )  okay? 

0. Here it  i s .  Ready? 

M9, COHAN: L e t  Joyce  r e a d  i t  back .  

THE WITNESS: P r e v i o u s l y  r e a d  i t  back ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS : 

8 Do you wapt t o  h e a r  t h e  r e p o r t e r  read i t  

back? 

h Of C O U r S 6 ,  



F 

A. 

(r 

n o t  t r u s t  

3 5 

You d o n ' t  t r u s t  me? 

No. 

Have I g iven  you some o b j e c t i v e  r ea son  t o  

me? 

Right  now, you a r e  g i v i n g  rne one.  

MR. WILLIAMS: Ms. Repor t e r ,  r e a d  t h e  

pending q u e s t i o n  back t o  M r .  Ho ra l e s ,  p l e a s e .  

(Whereupon, t h e  q u e s t i o n  r e f e r r e d  t o  was 

r e a d  i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d  by t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r , )  

BY MR. WILLIAXS t 

(r Now, Ricky, what I a m  t r y i n g  t o  do h e r e  i s  

t o  g e t  a  q u e s t i o n  and answer t h a t  match f o r  r e c o r d  

pu rposes ,  and a s  i a  always t h e  c a s e ,  you can  e x p l a i n  

any answer t h a t  you a r e  o b l i g e d  by t h e  q u e s t i o n  t o  

g i v e ,  b u t  I ' d  l i k e  t o  have a  head-on q u e a t i o n  and 

answer f i r s t ,  s o  t h e  q u e s t i o n  t h a t  I w i l l  p u t  t o  you 

i s  whether  you a r e  t e l l i n g  m e  now t h a t ,  on t h e  occasiox 

t h a t  you m e t  w i t h  Ms. Cohan and Se rgean t  Mar t inez  

and O f f i c e r  Diaz a t  t h e  Holiday Inn  on December 1 6 ,  

1980, you d i d  t e l l  Ms. Cohan of  a l l  of  t h e s e  e p i s o d e s  

i n v o l v i n g  bombings t h a t  you have described t o  u s  o v e r  

t h e  p a s t  coup l e  o f  days?  

A NO,  

MS. COHAN: Ricardo,  f o r g i v e  m e .  I o b j e c t ,  

The record  speaks f o r  i t s e l f .  

You may answer,  



THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank Godo 

No, when I t o l d  them about  a l l  t h o s e  t h i n g s  

were a f t e r w a r d s  when w e  moved t o  t h i s  b u i l d i n g  

subsequen t ly ,  you know, and I t o l d  Se rgean t  

Mart inez  and Do C, Diaz and Raul Diaz and Rina 

Cohan and t h e  polygraph guy--I b e l i e v e  t h a t  wan 

somdwhere a long  t h o s e  l i n e s ,  you know, and I 

went i n t o  t h i s  k ind  of-- 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

(r So a e  I unders tand  i t ,  a r e  you t e l l i n g  m e  

you d i d n ' t  d i n c l o s s  these t h i n g s  t o  Rina? 

A On t h e  16 th .  

0 On t h e  l b t h ?  

A W e l l ,  t h e r e  i a  a t r a n s l a t i o n  t h e r e  o f  

e v e r y t h i n g ,  

0 Ricky, y e s ,  b u t  g i v e  m e  t h e  answer, 

D i d  you o r  n o t ?  

A No, because  o the rwi se ,  it would have been 

t h e r e .  

(r Then, it was on t h e  occas ion  of  some o t h e r  

meet ing w i t h  MS. Cohan? 

A Y e s ,  

(r When you d i s c l o s e d  t h e s e  bombings t o  he r?  

A Y e s ,  

(r Was t h a t  on t h e  f i r s t  occas ion  o f  your  
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coming h e r e  t o  t h i s  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e  f o r  t h e  

p u r p o s e s  o f  b e i n g  polygraphed?  

A No, it was b e f o r e ,  d u r i n g ,  and a f t e r ,  and 

a l s o - - I  d o n ' t  know. There were s o  many m e e t i n g s ,  you 

know, 

QI How l o n g  a f t e r  your  f i r s t  m e e t i n g  w i t h  

Ms. Cohan and t h e  pol iceman a t  t h e  Hol iday  Inn  was it 

when i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  a n o t h e r  mee t ing  w i t h *  Ms. Cohan 

you d i d  make t h e s e  disclosures t o  h e r ?  How much t i m e  

had gone by? 

A I c a n ' t  p i n p o i n t  i t ,  

Q W e l l ,  Ricky,  are w e  t a l k i n g  a b o u t  a month 

o r  a  y e a r  o r  a week? 

A NO, less. I n  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  two weeks. 

QI Within  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  two weeks? 

A Uh-huh, 

Q. Then, a t  some p o i n t  b e f o r e  t h e  end o f  

December o f  1980,  you had t o l d  Ms. Cohan a b o u t  a l l  o f  

t h e s e  e p i s o d e s  o f  bombing t h a t  you have  d e s c r i b e d  t o  

u s  o v e r  t h e  l a s t  c o u p l e  o f  days?  

A Tha t  i s  r i g h t ,  

QI Was t h e r e  a  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r  p r e s e n t  when 

you t o l d  h e r ?  

A I d o n ' t  b e l i e v e  so .  

Q Was O f f i c e r  Diaz p r e s e n t ?  



A On one occas ion ,  he  l e f t ,  and I s t i l l  

remember t h a t  I t o l d  h i m ,  "You missed a l o t  of  i t , "  

Q Was Se rgean t  Mart inez p r e s e n t ?  

A On some of  i t ,  

9 Between t h e  two of  them, was one o r  a n o t h e r  

o f  them p r e s e n t  f o r  t h e  e n t i r e  meeting d u r i n g  which 

you were t e l l i n g  these t h i n g s  t o  Ms. Cohan? 

A Not e x a c t l y ,  

0 Then, t h e  on ly  one who heard  t h e  e n t i r e  

l i s t  of  d i s c l o s u r e s  about  t h e  bombings t h a t  you have 

d e s c r i b e d  t o  u s  p r e v i o u s l y  was Ms. Cohan, t h e  pro-  

s e c u t o r t  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A B a s i c a l l y ,  

(r Was t h e r e  anybody else a t  t h e  meet ing 

b e s i d e s  U s ,  Cohan, O f f i c e r  Diaz, and Se rgean t  Mart inez  

when you made t h e  bombing d i s c l o s u r e s  t o  h e r ?  

A. L i eu t enan t  Raul Diaz was p r e s e n t  a t  one ,  

I b e l i e v e ,  o r  two o r  t h r e e ,  

0 L i e u t e n a n t  Raul Diaz from t h e  P u b l i c  

S a f e t y  Department? 

A Homicide. 

M S .  COHAN: I t ' s  Metro Dade now. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes, 

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

0 You s a i d  t h a t  he  was p r e s e n t  f o r  one o r  two 
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o r  t h r e e  o f  them, 

Is t h a t  t o  gay  t h a t  t h e r e  were on o r  two 

o r  t h r e e  d i f f e r e n t  m e e t i n g s ?  

A There  were a l o t  o f  m e e t i n g s ,  Douglas.  

0 But ,  a l l  o f  them w i t h i n  t h e  two week p e r i o d  

f o l l o w i n g  your  f i r s t  mee t ing  w i t h  P r o e e c u t o r  Cohan 

a t  t h e  Hol iday  Inn?  

A B e f o r e  and a f t e r .  

0. I'm t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  o u t  when? 

A I n  December and p a r t  o f  J a n u a r y ,  

0. W a s  i t  b e f o r e  you went  w i t h  Agent DeArmas 

f o r  t h e  p u r p o s e  o f  g o i n g  i h t o  t h e  Wi tness  P r o t e c t i o n  

Program? 

A A c t u a l l y  I n e v e r  m e t  w i t h  Raul D e A r m a s  u n t i l  

t h e  day  t h a t  h e  p i c k e d  up t o  b e  s p i r i t e d  away. 

(r T h a t  was t h e  d a y  when y o u g a v e  t h e  machine 

gun t o  O f f i c e r  Diaz and S e r g e a n t  M a r t i n e z ;  c o r r e c t ?  

A Tha t  I gave  what? 

(r The Mac 1 0  machine gun? 

A And what  else? 

F W e l l ,  t h e  s i l e n c e r  and t h e  b a g  and e v e r y t h i n c  

t h a t  w a s  w k t h  i t-- .the ammun, i t ion?  . . 

A But ,  i t  s h o u l d  r e f l e c t  t h a t  i n  t h e  r e c o r d ;  

r i g h t ?  

0. Oh, t h e  r e c o r d  r e f l e c t s  t h a t .  

I w i l l  t e l l  you,  f o r  t h e  p u r p o s e  o f  h e l p i n g  





01 T h a t ' s  t h e  one  i n  A t l a n t a ?  

A T h e t a i s  c o r r e c t .  

0 My q u e s t i o n  t o  you s t i l l  i s  w h e t h e r ,  by 

t h e  t i m e  you m e t  w i t h  Agent DeArmaa t o  go i n t o  t h e  

Wi tness  P r o t e c t i o n  Program, had you, by t h a t  t i m e ,  

d i s c l o s e d  a l l  o f  t h e s e  i n c i d e n t s  o f  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  

and bombing e p i s o d e s  t o  M s .  Cohan? 

A B a s i c a l l y ,  yes, 

Q. Which o n e s  had you l e f t  o u t ?  

A None. 

(r Doe8 t h e  d a t e  J a n u a r y  2 6 ,  1981,  have any 

s i g n i f i c a n c e  f o r  you? 

A What d a t e ?  

(r J a n u a r y  2 6 ,  1981-- tha t  would be a p p r o x i m a t e l ]  

t e n  d a y s  b e f o r e  you went i n t o  t h e  M a r s h a l l ' s  

P r o t e c t i o n  Program? 

A Not now, 

(r As you s i t  h e r e  and r e f l e c t  upon i t ,  d o e s  

t h e  d a t e  have any s i g n i f i c a n c e  t o  YOU? 

A Nope, 

S i n c e  t h e r e  i s  a  mass o f  d a t e s  and  p a p e r s  

and  r e p o r t s ,  and you know, d i s c l o s u r e s ,  and u n d i s -  

c l o s u r e s ,  and  t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t .  

8 Have you o v e r  s e e n  any p o l i c e  r e p o r t s  o r  

t r a n s c r i p t s  of  t e s t i m o n y  l i k e  t h e  one from December 16 



t h a t  refer t o  m e e t i n g s  had w i t h  you by e i t h e r  t h e  

p r o s e c u t o r  o r  o f f i c e r s  Diaz and M a r t i n e z  t h a t  p e r t a i n e  

t o  t h e  t i m e  when you made t h e s e  d i s c l o s u r e s  o f  t h i s  

i n f o r m a t i o n  t o  them? i 
A I c a n ' t  r e c a l l .  

0. If t h e  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s ;  p a r t i c u l a r l y  

O f f i c e r  Diaz ,  s a i d  t h a t  t h e r e  was no mee t ing  o f  sub-  

s t a n c e  w i t h  you i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  which a n y t h i n g  o f  

s i g n i f i c a n c e  was d i s c u s s e d  a f t e r ,  s a y ,  J a n u a r y  1 0 ,  

1981,  would h i s  s t a t e m e n t  i n  t h a t  r e g a r d  be  a c c u r a t e ?  

A Could be. 

P Do you have  any r e a s o n  t o  d i s a g r e e  w i t h  it? 

A Not b a s i c a l l y .  

(r Do you r e c a l l  how many d i f f e r e n t  m e e t i n g s  

t h e r e  were? 

A O h ,  no ,  Douglas.  You know, t h e r e  were s o  

many o f  them t h a t - - I  j u s t  c a n n o t  g i v e  you t e n ,  twe lve -  

e x a c t  amount. 

Q When d i d  you s t a r t  making t h i s  i n f o r m a t i o n  

a b o u t  t h e s e  bombings known t o  Ms. Cohan and /o r  

0'f f i c e r  Diaz and /o r  S e r g e a n t  M a r t i n e z ,  ~ i c k y ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

Douglas .  

Q Your t e s t i m o n y ,  Ricky,  was t h a t  you gave  

them i n f o r m a t i o n  i n  b i t s  and p i e c e s  o v e r  a p e r i o d  o f  
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s e v e r a l  d a y s ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  and  

you a l r e a d y  p i n p o i n t  a  c e r t a i n  s p a n  o f  t i m e ,  which I 

a g r e e  w i t h  you t h a t  i t  was d u r i n g  t h a t  span  of t i m e  

t h a t  I t o l d  them a b o u t  my c o n n e c t i o n s  w i t h  t h e  bombing, 

t h a t  you a r e  r e f e r r i n g  t o .  

0. But ,  w e  h a v e n ' t  r e a l l y  narrowed i t ,  and t h a t  

i s  what  I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  d o ,  Ricky,  s o  t h a t  w e  c a n  have  

a s  c l e a r  a r e c o r d  o f  i t  a s  p o s s i b l e .  

You have t o l d  u s  t h a t  it s t a r t e d  on 

December 1 6 t h  when you m e t  Ms. Cohan; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A B a s i c a l l y .  

0. T e l l  m e  your  b e s t  and most  c l e a r  r e c o l l e c t i o ~  

o f  t h e  l a t e s t  p o i n t  i n  t i m e  a t  which you had any  s u c h  

n l e e t i n g  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  which you d i s c u s s e d  t h e s e  

t h i n g s  w i t h  Ms. Cohan, O f f i c e r  Diaz o r  S e r g e a n t  

Mar t inez - - the  l a t e s t  p o i n t  i n  t ime?  

k I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t ,  t h a t  it was 

c o v e r i n g  up t o  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  I was s n a t c h e d  by 

S p e c i a l  Agent Raul DeArmas--I'm so r ry - - sna tched- -  

s p i r i t e d .  

0. By S p e c i a l  Agent Raul DeArmas? 

A Tha t  i s  r i g h t .  Tha t  i s  t h e  span  of t i m e .  

8 Did you d e s c r i b e  t h e  e p i s o d e s  t o  M s .  Cohan 

and anybody e lse  who may have  been  p r e s e n t  i n  t h e  
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c o u r s e  o f  t h e e e  m e e t i n g s  w i t h  t h e  same d e g r e e  o f  

d e t a i l  t h a t  you have d e s c r i b e d  them t o  u s  o v e r  t h e  

p a s t  d a y  and a half o r  two days?  

. A No, s ir .  Tha t  i s  f o r  s u r e .  

0. Did you go t h r o u g h  them i n d i v i d u a l l y  w i t h  

Ms. Cohan and /o r  O f f i c e r  Diaz a n d / o r . S e r g e a n t  ~ a r t i n e z  

as you have gone t h r o u g h  them i n d i v i d u a l l y  w i t h  m e  

now? 

A W e l l ,  I n e v e r  t a l k  w i t h  Ms, Cohan i n  p r i v a t e  

o r  L C .  i n  p r i v a t e ,  There  was always  somebody else 

p r e s e n t ,  

0 A t  any t i m e  t h a t  you were h a v i n g  t h e s e  

d i s c u s s i o n s  w i t h  M s .  Cohan and t h e  o t h e r s  between 

December 1 6 t h ,  1 9 8 0  and February  S t h ,  1981, d i d  you-- 

A Wai t ,  w a i t ,  w a i t ,  . 
L e t  m e  s t r a i g h t  you a b o u t  something ,  

L e t  m e  s t r a i g h t  you t o  something .  

A f t e r  I went i n t o  t h e  Witnesg Program, I 

gave J o e  R o s e n t h a l ,  who was a n  A s s i s t a n t  Uni t ed  

S t a t e s  A t t o r n e y ,  a v e r y  a c c u r a t e  d e s c r i p t i o n  o f  t h e  

e v e n t s  t h a t  I a l r e a d y  d i s c l o s e d  t o  you today .  

(r Here's m y  q u e s t i o n  t o  you, s i r :  A t  any  

t i m e  t h a t  you were h a v i n g  c o n v e r s a t i o n s  a b o u t  t h e s e  

p r i o r  bombing i n c i d e n t s  w i t h  Ms.  Cohan and anybody 

else who might  have been p r e s e n t  between December 1 6 t h  
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of 1980 and February 5th of 1981, did you describe 

them in the same degree of detail? 

A No, no, no, I already answered to you that 

question, 

Q Did Ms, Cohan or anybody else between 

December 16th and February 5th ask you any questions 

about the information that you had given for the 

purposes of obtaining more information? 

A There were discussions with Joe Rosenthal, 

0 I am only asking you now about the conver- 

sations that you had with Mso Cohan? 

A The answer is no, 

(r Did you describe them individually; them, 

meaning the bombing episodes? 

A To whom? 

F To !¶so Cohan and anybody else who was presen 

in the course of those meetings between 16 December an 

5 February in the same way that you have separated 

them individually for us over the past day and a half? 

A No, sir, 

Q How did you do it, Ricky? Tell me how you 

did it, how you made these disclosures? 

A. In a general basis, Wllliarns, 

My involvement with the organized crime 

situation, the bombing of John Clarence Cook, the 



bombing o f  t h e  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r ,  t h e  bombing--oh, t h e  

guy a t  T r e a s u r e  I s l a n d ,  and A l f i e .  

0. Did you t e l l  them; meaning Ms. Cohan and 

anybody else who was p r e s e n t  between December 1 6 t h  and  

F e b r u a r y  5 t h  o f  t h e  a c t i v i t y  you had had i n v o l v i n g  

t h e  Cuban a i r p l a n e ?  Did you t e l l  them o f  t h e  a c t i v i t y  

you have had i n v o l v i n g  t h e  Cuban a i r p l a n e ?  

A Not a t  t h e  way t h a t  I t a l k e d  t o  you. 

Q. Did you make any r e f e r e n c e  to i t  a t  a l l ?  

A I have  been making r e f e r e n c e  a b o u t  t h a t ,  

you know, t h r o u g h o u t  t h e  p a s t  f i v e  o r  s i x  y e a r s .  

8i My q u e s t i o n  t o  you,  s i r ,  i s  whe the r  you t o l d  

Ms. Cohan and /o r  O f f i c e r s  Diaz and /o r  S e r g e a n t  

M a r t i n e z  between December 1 6 t h  and F e b r u a r y  5 t h  o f  

your  invo lvement  i n  t h e  bombing o f  t h e  Cuban a i r p l a n e ?  

A Yes. 

F Did you a l s o  t e l l  t h o s e  same p e o p l e  d u r i n g  

t h a t  same p e r i o d  of t i m e  o f  t h e  invo lvement  you had 

had i n  t h e  v a r i o u s  bombings t h a t  had t a k e n  p l a c e  h e r e  

i n  t h e  C i t y  o f  Miami between t h e  e a r l y  to middle  

s i x t i e s  and t h e  e a r l y  s e v e n t i e s ?  

A Y e s ,  i n  g e n e r a l  terms. 

Not one  by t h e  one t h e  way t h a t ,  you know, I 

have been g o i n g  t h r o u g h  you w i t h  it. 

8 A r e  t h e r e  y e t  o t h e r  bombing i n s t a n c e s  o r  



e p i s o d e s  t h a t  have  o c c u r r e d  a t  one  p o i n t  o r  a n o t h e r  

p l a c e  i n  t h e  w e s t e r n  hemisphere  i n  t h e  p a s t  1 5  y e a r s  

t h a t  you might  have  f o r g o t t e n  t o  ment ion  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  

of  t h e  c a t a l o g u e  t h a t  you have  been g i v i n g  us?  

A I n  t h e  w e s t e r n  hemisphere?  

0 Y e s ,  i n  which you were i n v o l v e d ?  

A Tha t  I was i n v o l v e d ?  . 

0. Yes, t h a t  you h a v e n ' t  t o l d  u s  a b o u t ?  

A (No r e s p o n s e ,  ) 

0. L e t  m e  a s k  one  f o r  example.  

Were you e v e r  i n v o l v e d ,  i n  any  way, i n  a  

bombing i n e i d e n t  t h a t  o c c u r r e d  i n  Washington,  D.C. ,  

i n  a p p r o x i m a t e l y  B976 o r  19773 

A N o  

(r Do you know which one  I am r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

A No, 

(]I Does t h e  name ~ e t e l i e r  d o  a n y t h i n g  t o  you? 

A. To m e ,  i t  g i v e s  m e  n o t h i n g .  J u s t  

p l e a s a n t n e s s ,  

Q Do you know who t h e  man was? 

A A s o c i a l  p i n k o ,  a communist a g e n t ,  

(r Do you know him t o  have been  somebody who 

was k i l l e d  i n  t h e  bombing o f  a n  a u t o m o b i l e  i n  

Washington,  D X . ,  i n  t h e  midd le  o r  l a t t e r  s e v e n t i e s ?  

A. I know t h a t  h e  became a  good communist t h a t  



day which i s  t h a t  he d i e d .  

01 Did you have a n y t h i n g  t o  do a t  a l l  e i t h e r  

d i r e c t l y  o r  i n d i r e c t l y  w i t h  t h a t  bombing, Ricky? 

A None wha t soever ,  my f r i e n d .  

0. Do you r e g r e t  n o t  hav ing  a n y t h i n g  t o  do w i t h  

i t ?  

A Yes. 

(r A r e  t h e r e  any o t h e r  bombing i n c i d e n t s ,  f o r  

example,  t h a t  o c c u r r e d  i n  South  American c o u n t r i e s  

d u r i n g  t h e  e a r l y  o r  middle  s e v e n t i e s  t h a t  you h a v e n ' t  

y e t  d isCkosed t o  u s  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t h i s  c a t a l o g u e  

ove r  t h e  l a s t  c o u p l e  o f  days  i n  which you p a r t i c i p a t e d ;  

A Nope, 

01 I n  C h i l e ?  

A I neve r  been t o  C h i l e ,  

0. Did you e v e r  p rov ide  m a t e r i a l s  t o  be used 

i n  t h e  d e t o n a t i o n  o r  p l a c i n g  o f  any e x p l o s i v e  d e v i c e s  

i n  C h i l e ,  t o  your  knowledge? 

A Nope, 

8 Argen t i na?  

A Nope, 

(r B r a z i l ?  

A Nope. 

(r Peru  o r  B o l i v i a ?  

A Nope , 

0. No t o  bo th?  



A What? 

0 No t o  bo th?  

A Who? 

0 A r e  you aay no bo th  t o  B o l i v i a  and Peru? 

A Yes. 

P When you t o l d  M s .  Cohan t h a t  you wanted t o  

g e t  a l l  of t h e s e  t h i n g s  o f f  of  your c h e s t  A w i n g  a 

pe r iod  between December 1 6 t h  of  1 9 8 0  and February  

5 t h  of  1981, d i d  you t e l l  h e r  t h e  r ea son  why you wantec 

t o  do t h a t ?  

A It  was my d e c i s i o n .  

0 What d i d  Ms. Cohan say t o  you when you 1st'- 

h e r  know t h a t  you wanted t o  t e l l  h e r  abobt a l l  o f  these 

t h i n g s ?  

A She must have been e l a t e d .  

0 W e l l ,  d i d  she  e x p r e s s  e l a t i o n  t o  you? 

A T h a t ' s  t h e  way t h a t  I took h e r  e x p r e s s i o n  on 

h e r  f ace .  

(r While you w e r e  g i v i n g  h e r  t h i s  i n f o r m a t i o n ,  

d i d  you obaerve  h e r  t o  be  making no t ea  as she i s  

making n o t e s  and a s  I have been making n o t e s  throughoul 

t h e  c o u r s e  of t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n ?  

A I b e l i e v e  s o ,  t h a t  s h e  made n o t e s ,  and t h e r e  

might have been microphones, t a p e  recorder. ,  going.  

8 Did you p e r c e i v e  t h e  p resence  of  any 
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microphones?  

A Down h e r e  i n  t h e  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  o f f i c e ?  

F Wherever you had t h e  mee t ing?  

A Oh, y e s ,  I p e r c e i v e d ,  you know, tape 

r e c o r d i n g 6  and n o t e s  b e i n g  t a k e n ,  and  t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t  

(r Were t h e y  c o n c e a l e d  t a p e  r e c o r d e r s ,  t h e  

p r e s e n c e  o f  which you d e t e c t e d ?  

A No, n o t  c o n c e a l e d .  E v e r y t h i n g  was v e r y  -open 

I f  t h e r e  was any c o n c e a l m e n t ,  you know, I d o n ' t  know. 

(r Who had t h e  t a p e  r e c o r d e r s ?  

A They were on t o p  o f  t h e  t a b l e s .  

Q With whom d i d  t h e y  come and go t  i f  you c o u l d  

t e l l ?  

A What d o  you mean "come and  g o w ?  

0 Well, were t h e  t a p e  r e c o r d e r s  o v e r  h e r e  

a l w a y s  i n  t h e  room when you came i n ?  

k Yes.  

Q Did you see any  p a r t i c u l a r  p e r s o n  o p e r a t i n g  

t h e  t a p e  r e c o r d e r s  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  your  c o n f e r e n c e s - -  

c h a n g i n g  t h e  t a p e s  o r  a d j u s t i n g  t h e  volume o r  a d j u s t i n  

t h - e m i c r ~ p h o n e s  o r  a n y t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t ?  

A Ms. Cohan and Dudley Dixon. 

(r Dudley Dixon, t h e  p o l y g r a p h  examine r?  

A Yes.  

0. So far as you c o u l d  t e l l ,  t h e n ,  it was 

Ms. Cohan and M r .  Dixon who were making and  c o n t r o l i n g  



t h e  t a p e s ?  

A Tha t  i s  c o r r e c t .  

a Was t h e r e  e v e r  a t i m e  when you c o n f e r r e d  w i t 1  

MS. Cohan a b o u t  y o u r  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  t h e s e  bombings 

when t h e r e  was n o t  a t a p e  r e c o r d e r  p r e s e n t ?  

A Y e s  . 
Q On 3ow many o f  t h e  o c c a s i o n s ?  

A I c a n ' t  s a y .  

CT Can you t e l l  u s  t h e  t o t a l  number o f  times 

t h a t  you met w i t h  Ms. Cohan d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  t h a t  

w e  have been r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

A I b a l i e v e  t h a t  I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  

q u e s t i o n  t h a t  I c a n n o t  come down t o  a s p e c i f i c  number 

o f  t i m e s .  

0 Was it a s  many a s  a dozen,  Ricky? 

A Could have been as  many a s  a dozen,  l a s s  

t h a n  a dozen.  

01 On t h e  o c c a s i o n s  when O f f i c e r  Diaz and 

S e r g e a n t  Mar t inez  were p r e s e n t  d u r i n g  t h e s e  c o n f e r e n c e  

p e r t a i n i n g  t o  t h e  bombings, d i d  you o b s e r v e  e i t h e r  o f  

them t o  be making n o t e s ?  

A Yes. 

(r Have you e v e r  t o l d  anybody p r i o r  t o  t o d a y ,  

Ricky,  t h a t  you d i d  have p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  t h e  Or lando 

Letelier bombing? 



7 0  

A, The what? 

Q Was t h e  name Orlando-- 

OFFICER DIAZ: Orlando what? 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

(r Had you e v e r  t o l d  anybody p r i o r  t o  t o d a y  

t h a t  you had a n y t h i n g  t o  do w i t h  t h e  bombing o f  Orlandc 

~ . e t e l i e r ?  

A How come? 

Q I ' m  a s k i n g  you i f  you e v e r  t o l d  anybody? 

A You mean, b ragg ing?  

0 I d o n ' t  know, Ricky. Maybe b r a g g i n g  o r  

maybe i n c l u d i n g  i t  i n  t h e  c a t a l o g u e  o r  maybe d i s c u s s i n $  

i t  t e c h n i c a l l y  w i t h  o t h e r  e x p l o s i v i s t s ?  Have you e v e r  

t o l d  i t  t o  anybody? 

A, What? 

(r Tha t  you had any p a r t i c i p a t i o n ' i n  t h e  

~ e t e l i e r  bombing? 

A. I n  t h e  k i l l i n g ?  

(r Yea. 

A I n  t h e  demise--whatever i t  i s ?  

0. Y e s ,  have you e v e r  t o l d  anybody t h a t  you had 

any p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  it? 

A No. 

0. Now, when you made t h e  d i s c l o s u r e s  t h a t  you 

d i d  t o  Ms. Cohan and O f f i c e r  Diaz and S e r g e a n t  
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M a r t i n e z  a b o u t  y o u r  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  t h e  bombings 

d u r i n g  December and J a n u a r y  o f  1980 and 1981,  d i d  

a n y  o f  t h e  t h r e e  o f  them t e l l  you t h a t  i t  w a s  g o i n g  

t o  b e  n e c e s e a r y  t o  d i s c l o s e  a n y  o f  t h o s e  t h i n g s  e i t h e r  

t o  l aw en fo rcemen t  a g e n c i e s  o r  t o  d e f e n s e  a t t o r n e y s  i n  

a n y  c a s e s  t h a t  r e s u l t e d  from t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  you were 

g i v i n g  them? 

A O f  ~ o u r a e ,  

Q Who t o l d  you t h a t ?  

A J o e  R o s e n t h a l  and Rina Coh an .  

0 Was M r .  R o s e n t h a l  e v e r  p r e s e n t  w h i l e  you 

were m e e t i n g  w i t h  MS. Cohan, Officer  D i s z ,  and  

S e r g e a n t  M a r t i n e z  i n  t h e  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e ?  

& No 0 

8 I ' m  o n l y  conce rned  w i t h  t h e  m e e t i n g s  t h a t  

you had w i t h  O f f i c e r  Diaz ,  S e r g e a n t  M a r t i n e z ,  and 

M s o  Cohan h e r e  i n  t h e  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e  i n  

December o f  1980 and  J a n u a r y  o f  1981. 

D i d  any  o f  t h o s e  t h r e e  p e r s o n s  o r  any o t h e r  

A s s i s t a n t  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y  who works w i t h  M s .  Cohan 

e v e r  t e l l  you t h a t  it i s  g o i n g  t o  be necessary 

t o  d i s c l o s e  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  you gave  a b o u t  t h e  

bombings and  y o u r  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  i n  them e i ther  t o  

l a w  e n f o r c e m e n t  o r  t o  d e f e n s e  a t t o r n e y s  i n  a n y  c a s e s  

t h a t  a r o s e  o u t  o f  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n ?  
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A They t o l d  m e  I was go ing  t o  be  q u e s t i o n e d  

a b o u t  my whole l i f e ,  

8 I'm a s k i n g  you s p e c i f i c a l l y  about-- 

A The answer i s  y e s ,  

Q Thank you, 

Now, I guess  I shou ld  ask you j u s t  t o  

complete  t h e  t r a v e l o g u e  o f  L a t i n  America-- 

A You a l r e a d y  d i d .  

The r e c o r d  r e f l e c t s  t h a t ,  

(r Shush, 

A Don't  shush ,  shush ,  shush ,  

8 Did you e v e r  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  any bombings 

i n  t h e  Republ ic  o f  Colombia? 

A No . 
Qc What abou t  any o f  t h e  C e n t r a l  American 

c o u n t r i e s ,  Panama, E l  Sa lvador ,  Cos ta  Rica ,  Guatamala-• 

any o f  t hose?  

A No 

8 Were you t o l d ,  Ricky, t h a t  i f  o the rwise -  

A I c a n ' t  hear--cha, cha ,  cha ,  

Qc Were you e v e r  t o l d  by Ma, Cohan o r  any 

p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s  t h a t  i f  o t h e r w i s e  any o f  t h e  bombings 

t h a t  you were d i s c l o s i n g  t o  them-- 

A I a m  g e t t i n g  d i s t r a c t e d ,  you know, 

Douglas,  I j u s t  c a n ' t  h e l p  it. What can  I t e l l  you? 



E i t h e r  w e  recess, you know, but -  

MS. COHAN: Why d o n ' t  you l e t  him f i n i s h ,  

and t h e n ,  w e  w i l l  a s k  t h e  q u e s t i o n s ?  

THE WITNESS: Th i s  i s  ve ry  o b j e c t i v e ,  I ' v e  

neve r  been s u b j e c t e d  t o  q u e s t i o n i n g  w h i l e  c h a ,  

c h a ,  c h a ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: The r e c o r d  shou ld  r e f l e c t -  

THE WITNESS: You a r e  s h i n i n g  your  ehoes ,  

MR. WILLIAMS1 (Cont inu ing)  - - t h a t  a shoe  

s h i n e  i s  b e i n g  a d m i n i s t e r e d  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  of t h i s  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  

( O f f  t h e  r e c o r d , )  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

9 Before  w e  recessed--not  t h i s  t i m e ,  b u t  t h e  

l a e t  t i m e ,  Ricky, you had t o l d  u s  t h a t  t h e  c o n v e r s a t i o i  

t h a t  you had had w i t h  M s .  Cohan a b o u t  t h e  bombings 

o c c u r r e d  on December l 6 t h ,  and t h e n ,  a f t e r  t h e  recess, 

you came back,  and you a p p a r e n t l y  had your  r e c o l l e c t i o i  

enhanced o r  improved i n  Borne f a s h i o n ?  

MS. COHAN: Ob jec t i on ,  Miss ta tement  o f  

t h e  . tes t imony.  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

(r D i d  something occu r  d u r h g  n o t  t h i s  recess, 

b u t  t h e  l a s t  one  t h a t  w e  took?  

A Which one ,  Douglas? 

0 The one  where i t  was k ind  o f  u n i l a t e r a l l y  
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d e c l a r e d  where you g o t  up and walked o u t  o f  t h e  room? 

A I went o u t  t o  pee. 

0. Okay. F ine ,  B e t t e r  there than  here .  

Did any th ing  occur  d u r i n g  t h e  cou r se  o f  t h a t  

recess t h a t  a f f e c t e d  your r e c o l l e c t i o n , '  i n  any way, 

a s i d e  from t h e  l e s s e n i n g  of  p r e s s u r e  on your bSadder? 

Did any th ing  else happen t h a t  a f f e c t e d  your r e c o l l e c t i  

A Nothing whatsoever.  

8 Now, t h a t  w e  have f i n i s h e d  having you t e l l  

u s  about  bombings, t h e r e  i s  one o t h e r  m a t t e r  t h a t  I 

want t o  e x p l o r e  w i th  you b e f o r e  w e  t a l k  abou t  M r .  

Queaada, h i m s e l f ,  and t h a t  i s  t h e  c o l l e c t i v e  o r  combin 

m a t t e r  o f  shoo t ings  o r  k i l l i n g s ,  murderm. 

You have t o l d  u s  abou t  bombings i n  which you 

p a r t i c i p a t e d .  Now, I ehould l i k e  f o r  you t o  t e l l  us-- 

A L e t  t h e  r eco rd  r e f l e c t  t h a t  M r ,  W i l l i a m s  i s  

t h e  one mentioning t h e  words "murders," and " k i l l i n g e .  

MR. WILLIAMS: The r eco rd  w i l l  show t h a t  

q u i t e  c l e a r l y ,  

MS. COHAN: W e  have a l r e a d y  dec ided  that 

- - - -  M r ,  +fer&Les heras -thcms i b f l i c t i n g  z a s u a l t i e s  

upon enemy t r o o p s .  

BY MR, WILLIAMSt 

8 I should  l i k e  you t o  t e l l  me, sir ,  a p a r t  

from c i rcumstances  t h a t  a r o s e  i n  t h e  Belgian Congo, 



a p a r t  from any  time t h a t  you s p e n t  i n  t h e  B e l g i a n  

Congo, i n  any  o r d e r  t h a t  you t h i n k  a p p r o p r i a t e ,  

l o g i c a l ,  c h r o n o l o g i c a l l y  coming fo rward  o r  ch rono-  

l o g i c a l l y  g o i n g  backward, o r  a l p h a b e t i c a l l y ,  o r  i n  

a n y e o t h e r  f a s h i o n  t h a t  you t h i n k  a p p r o p r i a t e  o f  t h e  

v a r k o u s  i n c i d e n t s  i n  which  you have e i t h e r  p a r t i c i p a t e d  

d i r e c t l y  i n ,  o r  a s s i s t e d  i n  t h e  p e r p e t r a t i o n  o f  t h e  

s h o o t i n g - o r  a t t e m p t  t o  s h o o t ,  o r  o t h e r w i s e ,  i n f l k c t  

death o r  b o d i l y  harm upon any o t h e r  p e r s o n ?  You c a n  

s t a r t  a n y p l a c e  you want .  

M r .  Aton Cos tanzo .  

What was t h e  name, p l e a s e ,  sir? 

Aton Cos tanzo .  . .  . 

When was t h a t ,  p l e a s e ,  s i r?  

T h a t  was November t h e  22nd, 1 9 6 8 .  

Where was t h a t ,  p l e a s e ,  sir? 

L i t t l e  Havana. 

Here i n  Miami? 

That- is c o r r e c t . -  - - - - - - 
- - - - - -  

What i s  t h e  n a t u r e  o r  t h e  way i n  which 

M r .  C o s t a n z o  was harmed o r  k i l l e d ,  as t h e  case may 

be? 

A No, h e  was n o t  k i l l e d .  

8 S h o t ?  



A Y e s ,  

(1 Who d i d  t h e  s h o o t i n g ?  

A I d i d .  . - - .  . " 

(r Did you a c t  by y o u r s e l f ,  o r  were you 

a c t i n g  w i t h  o t h e r s ?  

A I had a d r i v e r ,  

0. For  what purpose  o r  r e a s o n ,  i f  one  t h e r e  was 

d i d  you s h o o t  t h e  man c a l l e d  Coetanzo? 

A I w a s  p r o t e c t i n g  my l i f e .  

()I How d i d .  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  develop? ' .  What were 

t h e  b a s i c  d e t a i l s  o f  i t ?  

A I p i c k  up t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n ,  and I saw him- 

0 I'm sorry--what  i n f o r m a t i o n ?  

k If you l e t  me f i n i s h ,  I w i l l  g i v e  you t h e  

c a s e .  

H e  p i c k e d  up a c o n t r a c t  on my l i f e  r i g h t  
.. - *  

a f t e r  t h e  Or lando Bosch t r i a l  i n  1968. 

MS. COHAR: I'm a o r r y ,  Did you s a y  

"p icked  up,  o r  " p u t  up"? 

THE WITNESS: Picked up, I t  was p u t  o u t  

by somebody else.  

BY MR 0 WILLIAMS t 

9. A t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you s h o t  t h e  one  c a l l e d  

Cos tanzo ,  was he t h e n  engaged i n  a n  a c t u a l  e f f o r t  t o  

harm o r  k i l l  you a t  t h a t  moment? 



A Oh, yea .  

(r What was he  d o i n g  a t  t h e  moment t h a t  yau 

s h o t  h i m ?  

A T r y i n g  t o  f i n d  o u t  where I was l i v i n g ,  

t r y i n g  t o  find o u t  what k i n d  of  c a r  I was d r i v i n g ,  
. Y  , ..I v - , , " . "  

t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  o u t  a c t u a l l y  where I was, you know, 
, .-- .. .- . , 

was s t a y i n g ,  .. , . o r  p l a c e s  t h a t  I f r e q u e n t ,  and  making 

a l l  k i n d s  o f  t h r e a t s  o v e r  t h e  community. 
" .  " 

(r Here ' e  my q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  Morales:  A t  t h e  

moment t h a t  you s h o t  him, was h e ,  a t  t h a t  moment, 

engaged,  s o  f a r  as you c o u l d  p e r c e i v e ,  i n  some a c t u a l  

p h y s i c a l  imminent e f f o r t  t o  harm you o r  k i l l  you a t  

t h a t  moment? 

A A t  t h a t  moment? 

01 Y e s .  

A No, I was t h e  one  t r y i n g  t o  k i l l  him. 

(r You w e r e h ' t  t h e n  a c t i n g  t o  k e e p  y o u r s e l f  

from b e i n g  harmed a t  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  second?  

A Of c o u r s e ,  I r e a l i z e  t h a t  he  r e a l l y  was 

p o s i n g  a  t h r e a t  t o  my l i f e .  

8 Here's my q u e s t i o n  t o  you, sir: A t  t h e  

moment t h a t  you s h o t  him, was he  p h y s i c a l l y  t h r e a t e n i n c  

o r  menacing you w i t h  some weapon o r  w i t h  o t h e r  c i r -  

cumstances  t h a t  made you t h i n k  a t  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  

moment-- 



A W e l l ,  h e  had a  ;45  c a l i b e r  p i s t o l  w i t h  

him, and I c h a l l e n g e d  him, you know, draw,  and - - h e  . A  

d i d n ' t ,  

0. H e  d i d h ' t  have a  gun i n  h i s  hand a t  t h e  

t i m e  you s h o t  him? 

A H e  h a s  it w i t h  him, 

0. D i d  he  have i t ' i n  h i s  hand? 

A H e  n e v e r  p u l l e d  it o u t ,  

0. Did h e  have a k n i f e  i n  h i s  hand? 

A. No , 

0. Was h e  beh ind  t h e  wheel  o f  a  c a r ?  

A NO', 

8 So, t h e r e  w e r e n ' t  any  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  which 

would n o r m a l l y  o r  r e a l i s t i c a l l y  c a u e e  you t o  t h i n k  

t h a t ,  a t  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  moment, i f  you h a d n ' t  s h o t  

him, t h a t  you were  g o i n g  t o  b e  k i l l e d  o r  harmed; i s  

t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

Tha t  i s  c o r r e c t ,  

Was t h e  m a t t e r  i n v e s t i g a t e d  by t h e  p o l i c e ?  

Yes. 

C i t y  o f  MIami? 

Yes, 

Who was t h e  l e a d  i n v e s t i g a t o r ?  

I d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  

On what  p a r t  o f  h i s  body was t h e  man 



Costanzo s h o t ?  

A W e l l ,  I s h o t  him 17 t i m e s  a l l  o v e r ,  

8 And he l i a a b ?  

A He's s t i l l  walking t h e  a t r e e t e  o f  Miami, 

0. You ought  t o  be ashamed o f  y o u r e e l f ,  

A Why? 

0 Was i t  bad marksmenship o r  bad ammunition o r  

what? 

A Bea t s  me, 

0 Can you t e l l  m e  w i t h  any degree  of accuracy  

o r  p a r t i c u l a r i t y  where you g o t  h i m  on t h e  17 d i f f e r e n t  

s h o t s ?  

A. A l l  o v e r ,  

01 Leave any p l a c e  untouched? 

I mean, d i d  him i n  bo th  arms, bo th  

l e g s ?  

A I b e l i e v e  t h a t  11 times i n  t h e  c h e s t ,  and 
".%*.. " . . % " <  ..-. . 

you know, t h e  o t h e r  s i x ,  you know-it was 17  t i m e s .  

Q What k ind  of weapon were you us ing?  

A An M 3 ,  . 4 5  c a l i b e r ,  sub-machine gun w i t h  

a  s i l e n c e r  a t t a c h e d ,  

I d o n ' t  have t o  h i d e  no th ing ,  

(r Do you remember who was t h e  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  

who i n v e s t i g a t e d  t h e  shoot ing?  

A No 0 

QI Were you charged c r i m i n a l l y  w i t h  it? 



A W a i t ,  w a i t ,  w a i t ,  

I b e l i e v e  t h a t  I was p i c k e d  up  t h a t  n i g h t  - , -. - 

by-- there  were two b r o t h e r s .  

Q O f f i c e r  Diaz c a n ' t  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  t h e  depo- 

s i t i o n .  

A Weaver. 

Q W-e-a-v-e-r, Weaver? 

A. R i g h t ,  Weaver. 

I c a n ' t  p i n p o i n t  which one o f  them . 
0 Were you a c t u a l l y  a r r e s t e d  by t h e  p o l i c e ?  

(r were you e v e r  p r o s e c u t e d  c r i m i n a l l y  f o r  t h e  

s h o o t i n g ?  

A No 

0. D o  you know why? 

k M r ,  Cos tanzo n e v e r  p r e s s e d  c h a r g e s ,  
* * 

(Off t h e  r e c o r d ,  ) 

BY XR; -Wf&ErAHS - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
- - - -  - - - -  - - - -  

9 Were you a r r e s t e d  o r  p r o s e c u t e d  f o r  any 

f i r e a r m s  v i o l a t i o n s  a r i s i n g  o u t  o f  t h e  Costanzo 

s h o o t i n g  s u c h ,  for example,  a s  b e i n g  i n  p o s s e s s i o n  o f  

a n  i l l e g a l  f u l l y  a u t o m a t i c  weapon o r  s i l e n c e r ?  

A No, I was never a r r e s t e d  o r  p r o s e c u t e d  f o r  
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t h e  assumed c h a r g e s  t h a t  you a r e  r e f e r r i n g  t o ,  

Q* Did you know a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you s h o t  

M r ,  Cos tanzo  t h a t  you were commi t t ing  a c t s  which 

a p p e a r e d  t o  b e  o r  were a  v i o l a t i o n  o f  t h e  l aws  o f  t h e  

S t a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  and o f  t h e  Uni t ed  S t a t e s ?  

A Without  g e t t i n g  i n t o  more s e m a n t i c s ,  Douglas 

and make it e a s y  f o r  you and f o r  t h e  expense  o f  t h e  

r e c o r d ,  y e s ,  

0. I n  1 9 6 8  when t h e  s h o o t i n g  o c c u r r e d ,  Ricky,  

had you a l r e a d y  made t h e  a c q u a i n t a n c e  o f  Raul Diaz? 

A No. I w a s  n o t  even  aware t h a t  Raul Diaz 

was a l i v e ,  

0 Had you a l r e a d y  made t h e  a c q u a i n t a n c e  o f  

George Rober t s?  

A Who i s  George Rober t s?  

Q I ' m  sorry--what  w a s  t h e  f e l l o w ' s  name i n  

t h e  Bureau--George--the o l d  man? 

A Davia? 

P Davis ,  Have you e v e r  made t h e  a c q u a i n t a n c e  

o f  George Davis?  

A H e  was one  of t h e  c a s e  a g e n t s  i n  t h e  

Or lando Bosch t r i a l ,  b u t  he  was n o t  my CO a t  t h e  t i m e ,  

QI Who was? 

A A t  t h e  t i m e ,  was Joe B a l l ,  

0. NOW, t h e r e  have  been o t h e r  o c c a s i o n s ,  
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M r .  Morales ,  upon which it h a s  happened, f o r  wha tever  

t h e  r e a s o n s  w e r e f i n  mot ion ,  t h a t  when you have been 

obse rved  o r  d e t e c t e d  by peop l e  connec ted  w i t h  law 

enforcement  . t o  have been a t  o r  n e a r  someplace where 

something t h a t  o c c u r r e d  t h a t  a t t r a c t e d  l a w  enforcement  

a t t e n t i o n  t h a t ,  a l l  of  a sudden,  one o r  a n o t h e r  o f  t h e  

pol iceman w i t h  whom you have had c o n t a c t  o v e r  t h e  yearr  

M r .  Davis ,  M r .  B a l l ,  Raul Diaz--8omebody l i k e  t h a t - - k i ~  

o f  m y s t e r i o u s l y  a p p e a r s  on t h e  s c e n e ,  and w e  w i l l  t a l k  

a b o u t  t h a t  l a t e r  on ,  b u t  my q u e s t i o n  t o  you p r e s e n t l y  

i s ,  a t  o r  immedia te ly  a f t e r  t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  Costanzo 

s h o o t i n g ,  were t h e r e  any p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s ,  e i t h e r  s t a t e  

o r  f e d e r a l ,  who came t o  t h e  s cene  of  t h e  e p i s o d e  who 

were n o t  d i r e c t l y  i nvo lved  i n  t h e  a c t u a l  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  

o f  i t  as p a r t  o f  t h e i r  o f f i c i a l  d u t i e s ?  

MS. COBAN: Ob jec t i on  t o  c o u n s e l  t e s t i f y i n g .  

YOU may answer,  

THE WITNESS: A s  f a r  a s  I know, M r .  Costanxo 

was p i cked  up by an ambulance and t r a n s p o r t e d  t o  

t h e  Jackson  Memorial H o s p i t a l ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

01 Were you c o n t a c t e d  a t  any p o i n t  w i t h i n  t h e  

t h r e e  d a y s  a f t e r  t h e  Costanzo s h o o t i n g  by any law 

enforcement  peop l e  who wanted t o  d i s c u s s  i t  w i t h  you? 

A I was c o n t a c t e d  by t h i s  S e r g e a n t  Weaver o r  



O f f i c e r  Weaver o r  a n o t h e r  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  t h a t  I c a n n o t  

recal l  who he was on t h e  same d a t e ,  l e t ' s  s a y ,  some 

t i m e  a r o u n d  two o ' c l o c k  i n  t h e  morning.  

l)i D i d  M r .  B a l l  c o n t a c t  you? 

A, Nope, 

(r D i d  you c o n t a c t  h i m ?  

A, Nope. 

(r When you s h o t  Cos tanzo ,  Ricky ,  were o t h e r  

p e r s o n s  p r e s e n t ?  

A The d r i v e r .  

8 W e r e  t h e r e  p e d e s t r i a n s  o r  p a a s e r a b y e r s  on thc  

street? 

A No. 

(r Was it w i t h i n  t h e  p r e d i c t a b l e  s i g h t  o r  

v i s i o n  o f  anybody else? 

A The--how c a n  I describe it? The c l e a n  car ,  

8 I missed it. 

A W e l l ,  t h e r e  w a s  a car t h a t  was used  f o r  t h e  
. . 

p u r p o s e  o f  b l o c k i n g  any  p u r s u i n g  cars.  
. ' .  

(r What was t h e  terms t h a t  you used- - the  what  

k i n d  o f  c a r ?  

A C lean  car. 

IT C l e a n ,  C-1-e-a-n? 

A Y e s ,  t h e  c l e a n  car.  

0. Who was i n  t h e  c l e a n  car? 



A Aguedo Lugo, 

For  your  i n f o r m a t i o n ,  he  i s  d e a d ,  and  f o r  

your  i n f o r m a , t i o n ,  t h e  d r i v e r  o f  t h e  car ,  l a s t  name 

Gonzalez ,  and he  was s u b s e q u e n t l y  k i l l e d , b y  M r .  

Cos tanzo ,  

8 T h a t ' s  t h e  way it g o e s ,  

Did you have any c o n t a c t ,  y o u r s e l f ,  w i t h  

e i t h e r  M r .  Cos tanzo  o r  members o f  t h e  f a m i l y  d u r i n g  

t h e  seven  d a y s  immedia te ly  f o l l o w i n g  t h e  s h o o t i n g ?  

A No. 

0. Did you a a k  o r  r e q u e s t  o r  i n s t r u c t  anybody 

else t o  have  any c o n t a c t  w i t h  Coatanzo  o r  a n y  members 

o f  h i s  f a m i l y  d u r i n g  t h e  seven  d a y s  f o l l o w i n g  t h i s  

s h o o t i n g ?  

A Not m e .  

(r Did anybody? 

A I d o n ' t  know, 

8 would you p l e a s e  t e l l  me, Ricky,  t h e  n e x t  

o c c a s i o n  o r  e p i s o d e  a f t e r  November o f  1968 i n  t h e  

c o u r s e  o f  which you e i t h e r  s h o t  o r  s h o t  a t  somebody, 

o r  d i d  a n y t h i n g  e lse  i n  a n  e f f o r t  t o  harm o r  k i l l  a  

p e r s o n ?  

k What? 

8 Next e p i s o d e  a f t e r  November o f  1968 i n  which 

you s h o t  somebody o r  s h o t  a t  somebody o r  d i d  a n y t h i n g  

i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  a n  e f f o r t  t o  harm ok k i l l  eorneone? 



A I was--as you know, f i r s t h a n d ,  I was a r r e s t e  

and c h a r g e d  f o r  f i r s t  d e g r e e  murder o f f e n s e ,  which you 

were t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  o f  t h a t  c a s e .  

(r R e f r e s h  my memory, Who was t h e  p e r s o n ?  

A Do I have t o  r e f r e s h  y o u r  memory? 

(r Y e s ,  j u s t  f o r  t h e  r e c o r d ,  Ricky.  

Who was t h e  p e r s o n  whose d e a t h  c a u s e d  y o u r  

arrest? 

A Armando Ruiz ,  

0 Was h e  a l s o  known a s  E l a d i o  Ruiz? 

A Also  known a s  James Bond, 

QI Was he  a l s o  known a s  E l a d i o  Ruiz? 

A 
* Also  - -. . . . % known - . a a  E l a d i o  Ruiz., 

(r Did you s h o o t  him? 

A Y e s .  

(r T h a t  would have  been  i n  t h e  midd le  o r  

l a t t e r  p a r t  o f  1973,  as f recal l ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ,  

o r  1972--which? 

1 A I b e l i e v e  it was August ,  

A August t h e  2nd, 1973. 

01 Why d i d  you k i l l  him? - -. . ._. . . 

A H e  p u t  
.... . . , . .  

a  b u l l e t  r i g h t  h e r e  
. , .  .., ( i n d i c a t i n g )  .I*b ,-. a .- . 

i 

on May t h e  2 5 t h ,  1973 and on  t h a t  o c c a s i o n  he w a s  .- ------ 

b e n t  i n t o -  
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MS. COHAN: I n d i c a t i n g  t h e  t o p  o f  h i s  head.  
<.-" ,.. - "* . .,, . . 

THE WITNESSr (Cont fha&ng)  - - i n t o  k i l l i n g  

m e  w i t h  a c h a i n  and a  b i g  l o c k  t h a t  he  h a s  a round  

h i s  w a i s t ,  which you s h o u l d  remember a b o u t  as 

b e i n g  t a k e n  o u t  o f  h i s  c o r p s e ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

a Did Ruiz a c t u a l l y  s h o o t  o r  d i d  h e  p u t  a  gun 

t o  your  head? 

R I was t h e  one  who s h o t ,  

Q I know, b u t  you s a i d  a  minu te  a g o ,  Ricky,  

t h a t  he  p u t  a  b u l l e t  i n  t h e  t o p  o f  y o u r  head? 

A On May t h e  2 5 t h ,  1 9 7 3 ,  

(r My q u e s t i o n  t o  you i s ,  d i d  h e  a c t u a l l y  a h o o t  

you i n  t h e  head ,  o r  d i d  h e  a c t u a l l y  p u t  a  gun t o  your  

head? 

A No, h e  -u--- s h o t , m e ~ f x o m  am>.a-- a tax. I was p a r k i n g  

m y  c a r  somewhere on 6 t h  S t r e e t  and c l o s e  t o  5 t h  

Avenue, and by t h e  t i m e  t h a t  I was p a r k i n g  t h e  c a r ,  

you know, I looked t o  the-you know, t o  t h i s  l i t t l e  

m i r r o r  n e x t  t o  t h e  d o o r  o f  t h e  c a r ,  and I saw t h e  

h e a d l i g h t s  o f  a c a r ,  you know, t u r n i n g  on t h e  o t h e r  

c o r n e r ,  t h e  c o r n e r  b e h i n d ,  and w h i l e  mot ions  t o  p a r k  

my c a r ,  I took  a  look  a g a i n .  The l i g h t s  were gone ,  

s o  t h e  n e x t  t h i n g  t h a t  I knew, i t  wan t h a t  I was s h o t ,  

I touched  u n d e r n e a t h  t h e  dashboard  o f  t h e x a ~  
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and I coun t  u n t i l  t h r e e  e x p e c t i n g  a ba r r age .  When 

t h a t  d i d n ' t  happen, you know, I managed samehow t o  

c r awl  undernea th  a c a r  and run  i n t o  a b u i l d i n g  where 

I--you know, I f a i n t  due t o  t h e  loss o f  b lood ,  you 

know, and t h e n ,  I managed t o  get t o  a phone i n  t h a t  

b u i l d i n g ,  and I c a l l e d  t h e  FBI and t h e  DEA and 

informed them what ha s  happened t o  m e ,  and t h a t  I 

b e l i e v e d  t h a t  I was n o t  go ing  t o  d i e ,  t h a t  I was 

b l e e d i n g  p r o f u s e l y .  

0. I'm sor ry - -d id  you t e l l  them t h a t  you 

t hough t  youywere .g&ing  t o  d i e  o r  t h a t  you were n o t  

go ing  t o  d i e ?  

A That  E was n o t  go ing  t o  d i e ,  t h a t  I was 

b l e e d i n g  h e a v i l y ,  and t h a t  I r e q u e s t ,  you know, an  

ambulance and t h e  p o l i c e  c a r s ,  you know, t o  be  p r e s e n t  

a t  t h e  s c e n e ,  and t h a t  I w a s  n o t  coming o u t  of t h a t  

apa r tmen t  u n t i l  I see t h e  b l u e  l i g h t s ,  you know, and 

80 on ,  

I mean, t h e  r e d  l i g h t s ,  They were r e d  i n  

t h o s e  t i m e s .  

(r Did you r e c e i v e  medical  t r e a t m e n t ,  Ricky? 

A. I r e c e i v e d  medical  t r e a t m e n t  by t h e  paramedic 

a t  t h e  s p o t .  

I was p laced  i n  an ambulance, and I was 

t a k e n  down t o  Jackson Memorial H o s p i t a l ,  and t h e y  took 
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X-rays of  my head, and p a r t  o f  t h e  b u l l e t  was stildl 

lodged .-." - 
, + . between, my s c a l p  and my skul.1. 

P Were you admit ted t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l ?  

I was admit ted and r e l e a s e d ,  A 

(r I'm s o r r y ,  s i r ,  

A I was admit ted and r e l e a s e d ,  

8. Under what name were you t r e a t e d ?  

A Ricardo Morales. 

(r How d i d  you know t h a t  i t  was Ruia who had 

s h o t  you i n  May? Did you see him? 

A. Because I saw t h e  kind of a c a r ,  and I 

d i d  a long i n v e s t i g a t i o n  about i t ,  and i t  j u s t  happene 

t h a t  he was r i d i n g  wi th  t h r e e  more fe l lowa,  and s ince -  

t h i s  i s  t h e  t i m e  wi thout  s e c r e t s ,  you know. 

0 Amen, 

A Amen, 

0 Go ahead, 

So, your i n v e s t i g a t i o n  on your own even tua l1  

l e d  you t o  t h e  conc lus ion  t h a t  it was Ruiz who had 

s h o t  you? 

A Yes,  

o! What kind of gun d i d  you use t o  k i l l  him, 

Ricky? 

A Huh? 

(r What kind of a gun d i d  you use t o  k i l l  him? 



A I k i l l e d  him w i t h  a ' ~ r o w n i n g ,  

(r Tha t  f u l l y  a u t o m a t i c  , 9  m i l l i m e t e r  t h a t  

you c a r r y ?  

A The one  t h a t  I r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  ' t h e  ATF d u r i n  

t h e  r e g k s t e r  p e r i o d ,  

0. I t  wae a  f u l l y  a u t o m a t i c  handgun; w a s n ' t  i t ?  

A And it was registered w f t h  ATF a s  a  f u l l y  

a u t o m a t i c  p i s t o l  i n  1968 .  
* <  .W"* -. 

(r I t  was s i l e n c e d #  w a s n ' t  i t ?  

A No, t h a t  i s  i n c o r r e c t ,  

0. Who was t h e  f e l l o w ,  Ricky, who, a t  t h e  t i m e  

you were a r r e s t e d  and charged  w i t h  Ru iz l  k i l l i n g ,  was 

t h e  o n e  who supposed ly  w a s  t h e  S t a t e ' s  o n l y  eyewi tneea  

who .cou ld  i d e n t i f y  YOU? Do you know t h e  man's name? 

A B e a t s  m e ,  

0. R u b ,  E l a d i o  Ruiz , had supposed ly  * k i l l e d  a 

man named German Lamazares;  i s n ' t  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A H e  was cha rged  w i t h  i t ,  

Q Did you l e a r n  on your  own o r  from any 

o t h e r  s o u r c e  t h e  r e a s o n  t h a t  Ruiz had k i l l e d  

Lamazarea? 

A H e  t o l d  everyone .  

(r Was t h a t  a  y e s ,  p l e a s e ,  sir? 

A Y e s .  

8 Did you know M r .  Lamazaree? 
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Nancy? 
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Y e s .  

Was h e  a  f r i e n d  o f  yours?  

S o r t  o f .  

Did you know h i s  w i f e?  

Y e s .  

Nancy? 

Yes. 

W a s  s h e  a  f r i e n d  o f  yours?  

Y e s ,  

How would yon d e a c r i b e  your  f r i e n d s h i p  w i t h  

How gory  d o  you want m e  d e s c r i b i n g  myse l f ,  

my f r i e n d s h i p  w i t h  Nancy Lamazares, 

QI J u s t  a s  e x p r e s s l y  a s  I need you t o  answer thc 

q u e s t i o n .  

A Very c l o s e  f r i e n d .  

(r Were you i n t i m a t e ?  

A W e  w e r e  v e r y  c l o s e  f r i e n d s .  

(r Were you i n t i m a t e  w i t h  h e r ?  

M S .  COHAN: Objec t i on  t o  t h e  r e l e v a n c e  and 

m a t e r i a l i t y .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS t 

QI Go ahead.  

A I t  wae c l o s e  f r i e n d s .  

(r Were you i n t i m a t e  w i t h  Nancy Lamazares, 

Ricky? 



A. We have an  i n t i m a t e  r e l a t i o n s i h p ,  

01 Did your  f r i e n d s h i p  w i t h  German Lamazares 

and your  c l o s e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  Nancy Lamazares have  

a n y t h i n g  t o  d o  w i t h  your  h a v i n g  k i l l e d  ~ l a d i o  ~ u i z ?  

A. NO,  sir.  

Qi I t  was o n l y  o u t  o f  r e t a l i a t i o n  f o r  h i s  

hav ing  s h o t  you some t h r e e  months-or f o u r  months 

e a r l i e r ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A And h i e  i n t e n t  t o  d o  m e  away anyway, 

I). Do you know now o r  have you i n  t h e  p a s t  6nmx 

anybody else who, a t  one  t i m e  o r  a n o t h e r ,  h a s  main- 

t a i n e d  a n  i n t i m a t e  o r  c l o s e  p e r s o n a l  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  

Nancy Lamazares a s i d e  from y o u r s e l f  and German? 

M S ,  COHAN: O b j e c t i o n  t o  t h e  m a t e r i a l i t y  

and h e a r s a y  t h a t  t h e  q u e s t i o n  c a l l s  f o r ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: P l e a s e  i n s t r u c t  him n o t  t o  

answer.  I would l o v e  t o  l i t i g a t e  t h a t  one ,  

I ' m  b e i n g  f a c e t i o u s ,  o f  c o u r s e .  I c e r t a i n l y  

want a n  answer t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n .  

HR, COHAN: H e  may o r  may n o t  answer what  

h e  c h o o s e s  t o  answer,  

THE WITNESSt I have n e v e r  s e e n  h e r  i n  bed 

w i t h  a n o t h e r  man. 

BY MR, WILLIAMS : 

0 Do you r e l y  t h r o u g h  your  knowledge and 

awareness  o f  t h e  t h i n g s  go ing  on i n  your  day-to-day 



life solely upon the things that you have seen with 

your own eyes, or do you also give credence to things 

that you have heard? 

A. Referring to sexual relations, 1 only 

am aware of anybody else, you know, doing sex with 

somebody else, you know, upon my eyes. 

TT Well, regardless of what you have seen, 

Ricky? 

A No, it's not regardless what I seen. 

(r Tell me whether you have heard from any 

source- 

A. Oh, no, no, no. Third parties and things 

like that, you know, for Christ's sake, you know, I 

mean, that's hearsay, you know. 

(r Let me make it easy for you. 

A. Oh for God, you know. Why don't you ask her 

( E ; .  I am going to heLp you out. 

A. Don't help me nothing. Ask her. 

(r Here's the question, Ricky: Have you ever 

heard or learned from any source, whatsoever, that 

Ms. Lamazares had, at any point in time, maintained 

an intimate relationship with any police officer? 

MS. COHAN: Same objection to the materialit 
\ 

and relevance of Ms. Lamazares' personal life. 

THE WITNESS: Douglas, I am a gentleman, 
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and I don ' t -  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

o! I ' m  a d e f e n s e  l awyer ,  Ricky. 

A T h a t ' s  your problem. 

Q T h a t ' s  my job. 

A. Tha t ' 8  your  problem, and you know, I a m  n o t  

i n  t h e  defamat ion bureau s i d e  of s p r e a d i n g  b o y f r i e n d a ,  

l o v e r ,  o r  wha tever ,  you know, tovwhom who p r e s e n t l y  

might be mar r i ed ,  have a f ami ly ,  o r  whatever .  

(r Now, w e  have g iven  you t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  

t o  e x p r e s s  your  ph i loaophy  i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d .  Now, 

can  you p l e a s e  answer my q u e s t i o n ,  p l e a s e ,  s i r ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t h e  q u e s t i o n .  

(rc The q u e s t i o n  i s ,  s i r ,  whether  you have 

l e a r n e d ,  from any s o u r c e ,  t h a t  t h e  one c a l l e d  Nancy 

Larnazares h a s ,  a t  any  t i m e  i n  t h e  p a s t ,  ma in ta ined  

an  i n t i m a t e  r e l a t i o n s h i p - w i t h  any p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  whom 

you know? 

MS. COHAN: I am going t o  o b j e c t  t o  t h e  

r e l e v a n c y  o f  t h e  q u e s t i o n  and i n s t r u c t  t h e  

w i t n e s s  i f  you Bo n o t  choose t o  answer,  you may 

do s o ,  and ask f o r  a p r o f f e r  of  r e l evancy .  

THE WITNESS: I w i l l  j o i n  he r .  

BY MR 0 WILLIAMS : 

a A r e  you r e f u s i n g  t o  answer a  q u e s t i o n ?  
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A Y e s .  

MR. WILLIAMS: A l l  r i g h t .  You and t h e  

w i t n e s s  and I had b e s t  c o n f e r  off t h e  r e c o r d  

p r i v a t e l y ,  and i f  you want M r .  Diaz $0 be t h e r e ,  

I have no o b j e c t i o n  t o  t h a t ,  b u t  I shou ld  t h i n k  

t h a t  you would have enough confideince, a s i d e  

from a n y t h i n g  else,  t h a t  you can  keep  t h e  con-  

v e r s a t i o n  t o  t h e  w i t n e s s  t o  y o u r s e l f ,  and m e .  

MS. COHAN: I d o n ' t  see what se l f -  

c o n f i d e n c e  h a s  t o  do w i t h  i t ,  M r .  Wil l iams.  

MR. WILLIMS: As you wish ,  b u t  I t h i n k  it 

might  be i n  everybody ' s  b e t t e r  i n t e r e s t  i f  w e  

c h a t t e d  f i r a t  b e f o r e  w e  go downs t a i r s .  

MS. COHAN: L e t ' s  go n e x t  door .  

Peter, can  you s t a y  h e r e ,  p l e a s e ?  

MR. OUTERBRIDGE r Sure ,  I 

(whereupon, an  o f f  - the-record  d i s c u s s i o n  

w a s  had between M r .  Williams, MS. Cohan, t h e  w i t n e s s  

and O f f i c e r  Diaz , ) 

BY MR. WILLIAMS t 

0 Ricky, do  you have t h e  pending q u e s t i o n ,  

o r  do you want m e  t o  r e s t a t e  it? 

A What? 

(r The pending q u e s t i o n ?  

k What q u e s t i o n ?  I b e l i e v e  t h a t  I a l r e a d y  
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answered i t ,  

MS, COHAN: No, t h e r e  i s  a  pend ing  q u e s t i o n ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

0. The q u e s t i o n  i s ,  whe the r  you have  l e a r n e d  

from any s o u r c e  whatsoever--  

A I a l r e a d y  answered it ,  you know, 

MS, COHAN: Wait  a minu te ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS : 

Q ( C o n t i n u i n g )  - - t h a t  t h e  one  named Nancy 

Lamazares h a s ,  a t  any t i m e  i n  t h e  p a s t ,  m a i n t a i n e d  

an  i n t i m a t e  o r  c l o s e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  somebody i n  law 

enforcement  known t o  you? 

MS, COHAN: R ica rdo ,  I am g o i n g  t o  o b j e c t  t o  

t h e  r e l e v a n c y  and m a t e r i a l i t y ,  

You may o r  may n o t  answer ,  a s  you choose .  

THE WITNESS: I am n o t  g o i n g  t o  answer ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

a A r e  you r e l y i n g  upon-- 

A. O n  what? 

0 Areyou r e l y i n g  upon any l e g a l l y  r e c o g n i z e d  

p r i v i l e g e  i n  d e c l i n i n g  t o  answer? 

A I do n o t  u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  k i n d  o f  l e g a l i t y  

t h a t  you a r e  p u t t i n g  up t o  me, ao  I w i l l  c o n s i d e r  t h a t  

if I answer t o  you,  you know, it might  be, you know, 

b r e a k i n g  something  o r  what ,  



MR. WILLIAMS: C e r t i f y  it. 

(Off t h e  r e c o r d . )  

(Whereupon, t h e  f o l l o w i n g  p r o c e e d i n g s  

w e r e  had b e f o r e  t h e  Honorable Gerhld  Kogan i n  Chambers 

THE COURT: Okay, everybody.  

MR. WILLIAMS: Judge ,  you know M r .  Mora les?  

THE COURT: Y e s .  

Why d o e s n ' t  everybody s i t  r a t h e r  t h a n  s t a n d  

UP . 
Now, t e l l  m e  what i s  happening .  

MR. WILLIAMS: M r .  P u i g  i s  w i t h  us .  

THE COURT: I r e c o g n i z e  M r .  Pu ig .  

MR. WILLIAMS: To p r o t e c t  me. 

Your Honor, we've been making i n q u i r i e s  

i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  d e p o s i t i o n  c o n c e r n i n g  one  p a r -  

t i c u l a r  homicide t h a t  M r .  Mora les  committed 

a b o u t  o h ,  n i n e  y e a r s  ago o r  s o  i n  which t h e  

v i c t i m  was a man named E l a d i o  Ruiz.  

M r .  Morales  h a s  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  i n  a d d i t i o n  

t o  h a v i n g  a t t e m p t e d  t o  k i l l  him, M r .  Mora les  

p r e v i o u s l y ,  t h e  one c a l l e d  Ruiz i s  t h o u g h t  t o  

have  e h o t  and k i l l e d  a man named German w i t h  a  

"Gn Lamazares . 
A t  t h e  t i m e  o f  h i e  d e a t h ,  German Lamazares 

was m a r r i e d  t o  a  woman named Nancy Lamazarea. 



I have asked  M r .  Moralea t o  d e s c r i b e  t h e  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  t h a t  he  had w i t h  b o t h  ~ e r m a n  

Lamazarea and Nancy Lamazares,  and he  h a s  done 

t h a t .  

I t h e n  aeked him whether  he had knowledge 

o r  h a s  knowledge p r e s e n t l y  whe ther  t h e  woman 

named Nancy Lamazares had,  a t  any t i m e ,  been 

i nvo lved  i n  and/or  ma in ta ined  a n  i n t i m a t e  r e l a -  

t i o n a h i p  w i t h  somebody known t o  M r .  Mora les  i n  

law enforcement ,  and M r .  Mora les ,  on h i s  own, 

h a s  d e c l i n e d  t o  answer t h e  q u e s t i o n .  

To t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  one h a s  s u b j e c t i v e  

knowledge a b o u t  such  t h i n g s ,  I b e l i e v e  I know 

t h e  answer t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  a l t h o u g h  I need it 

t o  be  o f  r e c o r d ,  because  my u n d e r s t a n d i n g s  o f  

t h e  i n n e r  working o f  t h e  r e l a t i o n s h i p s  i n v o l v e d  

i s  auch t h a t  my b e l i e f  i s  t h a t  t h e  one  w i t h  whom 

Ms. Lamacaren h a s  i n  t h e  p a s t  been i n t i m a t e l y  

i nvo lved  i s  t h e  l a w  enforcement  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  

i n  t h i s  community who, f o r  t e n  o r  twe lve  y e a r s  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

h a s  had ongoing,  d i r e c t ,  v e r y  i n t i m a t e ,  and 

v e r y  s i g n i f i c a n t  c o n s t a n t  c o n t a c t  w i t h  M r .  

Moralea.  

THE COURT3 Before  w e  do  t h a t ,  let's 

s t o p  r i g h t  h e r e .  
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Read t o  m e  t h e  p a r t i c u l a r  q u e s t i o n  t h a t  

was a sked ,  and M r .  Moralea,  t h e n ,  w e  w i l l  g e t  

back to-- 

(Whereupon, t h e  c e r t i f i e d  q u e s t i o n  was 

r e a d  i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d  by t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r . )  

THE COURT: And M r .  Mara les  a a i d  he  wou ldn ' t  

answer t h e  q u e s t i o n ?  

THE COURT REPORTER: Yes. 

THE COURT: Now, t h i s  i s  n o t  t h e  S t a t e  

d i r e c t i n g  him n o t  t o  answer;  t h i s  i s  M r ,  Morales  

s t a t i n g  he  wouldn ' t  answer? 

MS. COHAN: No, 1 o b j e c t e d  on t h e  grounds  

of m a t e r i a l i t y  and r e l e v a n c y ,  

THE COURT: Tha t  was it, and M r .  Hora lea  

j u s t  r e f u s e d  t o  answer it? 

Go on back,  M r ,  Wi l l iams,  and t e a l  m e  what 

you were t e l l i n g - - o b v i o u ~ l y ,  t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g  t h a t  

comes t o  my mind what Ms. Cohan i s  r a i s i n g  t h e  

m a t e r i a l i t y  and r e l e v a n c y  as  t o  whether  o r  n o t  . 
t h i s  i n d i v i d u a l ,  Nancy, h a s  any i n t i m a t e  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  any law enforcement  o f f i c e r ,  

why would t h a t  be m a t e r i a l  o r  r e l e v a n t  t o  t h i s  

p a r t i c u l a r  c a s e ?  

MR, WILLIAMS: Franks  v e r s u s  Delaware,  

Judge ,  i n  s e v e r a l  p a r t i c u l a r s .  



The pol iceman i n  q u e s t i o n  i s  Raul Diaz ,  . 

who i s  p r e s e n t l y  a  l i e u t e n a n t  w i t h  t h e  P u b l i c  

S a f e t y  Depar tment ' s  homicide s e c t i o n ,  

Raul Diaz,  a a  I s a i d  b e f o r e ,  h a s  had what ,  

from t h e  p a r t  o f  t h e  i c e b e r g  t h a t  h a s  been 

v i s i b l e  above t h e  :surf'ace from ove r  t h e ' p a s t  

s e v e r a l  y e a r s ,  h a s  had a  v e r y  c l o s e ,  and i n  i t s  

own way, and I d o n ' t  mean any s e x u a l  i m p l i c a t i o n  

i n  t h a t ,  i n t i m a t e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  Mr, Mora les ,  

L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz h a s ,  t o  o u r  knowledge and 

b e l i e f ,  f i g u r e d  p rominen t l y ,  i n  a  behind- the-  

schinee way, i n  some a s p e c t s  o f  p r e p a r a t i o n  o r  

development  o f  t h i s  c a s e ,  

Hr, Moralea has a l s o  t o l d  u s  o f  c e r t a i n  

c o n v e r s a t i o n s  t h a t  he  had w i t h  L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz 

i n  t h e  p r o s e c u t o r ' s  p r e s e n c e  p e r t a i n i n g  t o  t h i s  

c a s e  and p e r t a i n i n g  t o  p r e p a r a t i o n  f o r  t h i s  case, 

M r ,  Morales  w a s  n eve r  t r i e d  f o r  t h e  Ruiz 
., - 

s h o o t i n g .  H e  was a r r e s t e d  and cha rged ,  and 

a t  t h e  l a s t  minu te ,  t h e  o n l y  w i t n e s s  who was 

a b l e  t o  make an i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  him changed 

h i s  mind, 

I even remember t h e  f e l l o w ' s  name, 

THE COURT: Did M r ,  Raul Diaz work t h a t  

case a s  a homicide i n v e s t i g a t o r ?  



MR, WILLIAMS: No, i t  was worked by t h e  

C i t y  o f  Miami, b u t  t h e n ,  O f f i c e r  Diaz was 

p r e s e n t  on t h e  s cene  s h o r t l y  a f t e r  t h e  s h o o t i n g  - 

and-- 

THE COURT: Now, when you s a y  "Diaz,"  w e  

have a coup le  o f  Diazes.  

MR. WILLIAMS: I am t a l k i n g  abou t  Rank. 

Diaz,  who was t h e n  a  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r ,  a s  I r e c a l l  

was p r e s e n t  s h o r t l y  a f t e r  t h e  s h o o t i n g ,  was 

i nvo lved ,  had c o n t a c t  w i t h  o t h e r  law enforcement 

o f f i c e r s  between t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  s h o o t i n g  and 

t h e  t i m e  of t h e  p r e l i m i n a r y  h e a r i n g ,  h a s  had 

suba r t an t i a l  a o n t a c t  w i t h  M r ,  Morales s i n c e  t h e n ,  

and t h e  Franks  q u e s t i o n ,  which I r e a l l y  d o n ' t  

want t o  have t o  a r t i c u l a t e  any more p r e c i s e l y  

t h a n  t h a t ,  r i g h t  now, because  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  it 

n e c e s s a r y  t o  g i v e  away s p e c i f i c  a r e a s  o f  d e f e n s e  

a t t a t e g y ,  become ve ry  r i g h t  from t h e  p o i n t  of  

view of  t h e  e x i s t e n c e  o f  any unders tand ing  o r  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  which, pe rhaps ,  would cause  M r .  

Morales t o  have been accorded,  i n  t h e  p a s t  and 

p r e s e n t l y ,  more l a t t i t u d e  and more p r e r o g a t i v e  

t h a n  would o t h e r w i s e  be accorded t o  a  peraon 

walk ing  t h e  streets o f  Dade County. 

THE COURT: B e  t h a t  as  it  may, how would 



t h a t  come o u t  of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  i f ,  i n  f a c t ,  it 

i s  t r u e  t h a t  Raul . - - . , -- Diaz does  have l l l l - + l .  an .1 i+ i n t i m a t e  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i th  Nancy-~whatever h e r  name ie - -  

MR, WILLIAMS: Lpmazares, +,- - 

THE COURT: What d i f f e r e n c e  does  t h a t  make? 

MR. WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  l e t  ma c o n s t r u c t  one 

p o s s i b l e  easy  s c e n a r i o ,  

Consider  t h e  l i k e l i h o q d  that - -oh,  cou ld  w e  

have M r ,  Morales and M r ,  Puig a t e p  o u t  f o r  a  

second? 

THE COURT: A l l  r i g h t .  

M r ,  Morales and M r .  Puig ,  s t e p  o u t  f o r  

moment, 

(Whereupon, O f f i c e r  Raul Puig  and 

Ricardo Morales l e f t  t h e  room,) 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Having i n  mind, Judge,  t h e  

ve ry  l i b e r a l  c o n s t r u c t i o n  t h a t  ha s  been g iven  t o  

t h e  d i scove ry  r u l e s  i n  bo th  c i v i l  and c r i m i n a l  

c a s e s  because ,  a s  I unders tand it,  t h e  r u l e s  of  

c i v i l  procedure  govern t h e  scoping  of  t a k i n g  

d e p o s i t i o n s  i n  c r i m i n a l  c a s e s ,  

THE COURT: That  i s  r i g h t ,  

They do,  b u t  even on my s t r e t c h i n g  t h e  

imag ina t ion - - a l l  r i g h t - f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  a r e  you 



s a y i n g  t h a t  M r ,  Mora les  was i n t i m a t e  w i t h  

Nancy way back when, seven  y e a r s  ago? 

MS, COHAN : H e ' s  a d m i t t e d  t o  a n  i n t i m a t e  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  h e r  n i n e  y e a r s  ago ,  

THE COURT: And now, you a r e  c l a i m i n g ,  

a l t h o u g h  h e  h a s  n o t  answered t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  

t h a t  i f  h e  d i d  answer t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  i f  h e  

know8 t h e  answer ,  t h a t  h e  would be  s a y i n g  t h a t  

Raul Diaz had a n  i n t i m a t e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  h e r ,  

and you a r e  s a y i n g  t h a t  Raul Diaz h a s  h e l p e d  

M r ,  Morale8 i n  t h e  p a s t ?  

MR. WILLIAMS: O f  c o u r s e  h e  h a s ,  

. He h a s  been  one  o f  h i s  two c o n t r o l s  

i n s o f a r  a s  t h e  u s e  o f  Mora les  a s  a n  i n f o r m a n t  

n o t  o n l y  by P u b l i c  S a f e t y ,  b u t  by v i r t u a l l y  

e v e r y  o t h e r  l a w  en fo rcement  agency i n  t h e  

Southeastern Uni ted  S t a t e s  s a v e  t h e  F B I  i s  

c o n c e r n e d ,  

M S ,  COBAN: P o i n t  o f  o r d e r ,  

I b e l i e v s  t h a t  what M r ,  w i l l i a m s .  i s  s e e k i n g  

from M r .  Mora les  i s  whe the r ,  n i n e  y e a r s  ago  

o r  e i g h t  y e a r s  a g o  o r  seven  y e a r s  a g o ,  L i e u t e n a n t  

Diaa had a r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  Nancy Lamaxarea; 

n o t  whe the r  h e  c u r r e n t l y  d o e s ,  

THE COURTt Is t h a t  i t? 



M R ,  WILLIAMS: W e l l ,  I want r e s p o n s e s  i n  

two a r e a s - a t  t h e  t i m e  o f  Ru iz '  s h o o t i n g ,  and 

. w i t h i n  t h e  p a s t  y e a r ,  

Now, l e t  m e  j u s t  f i n i s h  t h e  e a s y  s u p e r -  

.. f i c i a l  t h o u g h t ,  Judge ,  and Your Honor, I a s k  

you t o  keep i n  mind t h a t  t h i s  a r e a  o f  i n q u i r y  

i n t r o d u c e s  one  i n t o  an  e x t r e m e l y  c o m p l i c a t e d ,  

v e r y  t i g h t l y  in te rwoven  n e s t  o f  i n t e r r e l a t i q n s h i p  

t h a t  h a s  been i n  e x i s t e n c e  now f o r  a d a m n - y e a r a ,  

a t  l e a s t ,  and maybe more; a l l  o f  which have 

d i r e c t l y  b o r n e  upon t h e  a b i l i t y  o f  M r ,  Mora les  

t o  d o  c e r t a i n  t h i n g s  w i t h  and t o  law enforcement  

t h a t  nobody else i n  t h i s  p a r t  o f  t h e  wor ld  h a s  

e v e r  done b e f o r e ,  

THE COURT1 A l l  r i g h t ,  Give m e  a f o r  

i n s t a n c e ,  s o  I ' v e  g o t  something  t o  see what  you 

a re  t r y i n g  t o  g e t  a t ,  

MR, WILLIAMS: L e t ' s  s a y ,  f o r  i n s t a n c e ,  

t h a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  E l a d i o  Ruiz w a s  s h o t  by 

M r ,  Mora lea ,  and he  now a d m i t s  t o  d o i n g  i t ,  

t h a t  it w a s  done w i t h  t h e  knowledge and /o r  

a p p r o v a l  o f  Raul Diaz ,  t h e n  a pol iceman,  now 

a homicide  l i e u t e n a n t ,  e i t h e r  b e f o r e  o r  a f t e r  

t h e  f a c t ,  b u t  t h a t  because  o f  t h e  i n t e r -  

r e l a t i o b e h i p  among Diaz ,  t h e  Lamazares woman, 



and Morales ,  Diaz d i d  something less t h a n  what 

would have been done o r  he  shou ld  have done i n  

t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t h e  normal e x e r c i s e  o f  h i s  d u t i e s ,  

as a r e s u E t  o f  which Morales  was n o t  p ro secu t ed  

as  f u l l y  as he might  have been f o r  t h a t  m a t t e r  

o r  a s  a r e s u l t  of which, i n  t h e  f u t u r e ,  up u n t i l  

now, Morales h a s  been a l lowed th rough  t h e  u s e  o f ,  

i n  a f f e c t ,  t h e  c o v e r  o f  a - p h l i c e m a n ,  who has  been 

a b u f f e r  f o r  him, one  who i n t e r c e d e 8  between 

Morales  and l a w  enforcement ,  i f  o t h e r w i s e  

law enforcement  wants  Morales  t o  do  t h i n g s  t h a t  

r e g u l a r  c i t i z e n s  ought  n o t  do o r  c o u l d n ' t  do  

w i t h  t h e  knowledge and t h e  condona t idn  o f  a 

. h igh  r a n k i n g  County policeman. 

THE COURT: A r e  you s a y i n g  Morales  may 

be  h o l d i n g  o v e r  Raul Diaz '  head t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  i f  it does e x i s t  w i t h  Nancy? 

MR. WILLIAMS: That  c e r t a i n l y  i s  one 

p o s s i b i l i t y ,  Judge ,  and a l t hough  i t  i s  n o t  t h e  

o n l y  one t h a t  comes t o  mind, it i s  enough o f  a 
~ 

d i s t i n c t  p o s s i b i l i t y  g iven  t h a t  Raul Diaz ha s  

p a r t i c i p a t e d  d i r e c t l y ,  a l b e i t ,  behind t h e  

schemes i n  t h e  development o f  t h i s  c a a e  t o  t h e  

e x t e n t  t h a t  Morales has had a n  involvement  i n  

it, and given t h a t  Morales  ha s  d i s c u s s e d  t h i s  
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c a s e  w i t h  Diaz d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d s  o f  t i m e  

t h a t  t h e  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y ' s  O f f i c e  w a s  p r e p a r i n g  

t h e  f i r s t  a p p l i c a t i o n  and a f f i d a v i t  f o r  t h e  

i n t e r c e p t  o r d e r .  

THE COURT: Th i s  you 've  a l r e a d y  developed 

on d e p o s i t i o n ?  

MR. WILLIAMS: Yea, sir. 

M S .  COHAN: . T h a t  q u e s t i o n  ha s  been developed 

Judge,  c an  I s t a t e  a  few t h i n g s ?  

THE COURT: Y e s ,  s u r e .  

M S .  COHAN: F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  any r e l a t i o n s h i p  

t h a t  Nancy Lamazarea may have had i n t i m a t e l y  

w i t h  a n o t h e r  pe r son  n i n e  y e a r s  ago,  I would 

s u g g e s t  i s  immate r i a l  and i r r e l e v a n t . u n l e s s - -  

THE COURTS Although,  he say8  he  wants  t o  

deve lop  i t  r i g h t  now. 

MG. COHAN: (Cont inu ing)  -- u n l e s s  M r .  

Morales  w i l l  t e s t i f y  and h a s  n o t  y e t  been 

asked i f ,  i n  f a c t ,  Raul Diaz does  owe h i m  any 

d e b t a ,  any f a v o r s ,  a n y t h i n g  a t  a l l ,  because  of 

some a c t  he  may o r  may n o t  have t aken .  

I would s u g g e s t  t h a t  it i e  a t o t a l  

i n v a s i o n  o f  Nancy Lamazares' p r i v a c y  t o  a l l o w  

t h e s e  k i n d s  of q u e s t i o n s  t o  be  asked o f  a  t h i r d  

p a r t y .  
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He, b e i n g  M r .  W i l l i a r n ~ ,  h a s  i n d i c a t e d  he 

i n t e n d s  t o  subpoena Raul Diaz. 

I f  Raul Diaz was hav ing  an a f f h i r  w i t h  

Nancy Lamazares n i n e  y e a r s  ago o r  t oday ,  t h a t ' s  

t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  p a r t y  t o  a s k ,  b u t  i n s t e a d  

Nancy Lamaaares, it i s  my unde r s t and ing ,  i s  

c u r r e n t l y  h a p p i l y  r emar r i ed  w i t h  a f a m i l y ,  and 

I j u s t  t h i n k  t h i s  i s  a  t o t a l  i n v a s i o n  o f  h e r  

p r i v a c y .  

I would s u g g e s t  t h a t  M r .  Wi l l iams c a n  

i n q u i r e  o f  t h e  w i t n e s s  a s  t o  whether  D e t e c t i v e  

o r  L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz was p r e s e n t  o r  had any 

knowledge o f  t h e  E l a d i o  Ruiz .hooting,  and i f  80,  

how t h a t  knowledge was o b t a i n e d ,  and whether  

M r .  Morales  took any a c t s  o r  r e f r a i n e d  from 

t a k i n g  any a c t s  because  o f  M r ,  D iazw involvement  

i n  t h e  s i t u a t i o n ?  

I would a l s o  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  e v e r y t h i n g  r i g h t  

- now i s  t o t a l l y  h y p o t h e t i c a l ,  I t  i a  a  de f enae  

c o n s t r u c t .  There i s  no ev idence  r i g h t  now t h a t  

M r .  Morales h a s  any knowledge o f  Raul Diaz 

hav ing  o r  n o t  having an a f f a i r  w i t h  Nancy 

Lamazares,  and t h a t  t h e  o n l y  a p p r o p r i a t e  p a r t y  

t o  a s k  t h a t  q u e s t i o n  t o  i s  Raul Diaz o r  Nancy 

Larnazares, b u t  n o t  c e r t a i n l y  a s  t o  whether  M r .  

Morales  may have heard  a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  any law 
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enforcement o f f i c e r  having an a f f a i r  w i t h  a 

woman who has  no th ing  t o  do wi th  t h i s  c a s e .  

THE COURT: W e l l ,  o f  c o u r s e ,  under o r d i n a r y  

c i rcumstances ,  hearsay  a t  a d e p o s i t i o n  i s  

p e r m i s s i b l e  s i n c e  i t  i s  d i scovery .  

MS. COHAN: Under normal c i rcumstances ,  

yes. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Your Honor, what i s  t h e  

s t a n d i n g  o r  t h e  j u s t i f i c a t i o n  f o r  t h e  S t a t e ' s  

i n t e r p o s i n g  i t s e l f  i n  t h i s  k ind o f  l i t i g a t i o n  

where t h e r e  i s  n o t  some recognized p r i v i l e g e  

o f  which t h e  S t a t e  can a v a i l  i t s e l f ?  

MS. CORAN: To be p e r f e c t l y  candid ,  I 

a m  p e r s o n a l l y  offended.  

MR. WILL~AMS:  W e l l ,  you know, u n f o r t u n a t e l y  

t h a t  k ind  o f  t h i n g  c a n ' t  gu ide  us  i n  t h e  cou r se  

o f  t h e  performance of  ou r  p r o f e s s i o n a l  d u t i e s  o r  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s .  

I ,  myself, have, on s e v e r a l  occas ions ,  

been ou t raged  by t h i n g s  t h a t  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s  and 
- - 

-pmsectcrrsshave -done -in t h e  c o u r t s  bf t l i i s i  - - 

county  and on t h e  s t ree t s  of t h i s  county ,  b u t  

I d o n 8 t  get p e r s o n a l l y  involved  i n  i t ,  

THE COURT: Here's what I am going t o  do. 

I can underatand Ms. Cohan8s r e s e r v a t i o n s  about  
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t h e  s i t u a t i o n  i f  someone i s  no l o n g e r  i n  t h a t  

r e l a t i o n s h i p ,  i f  someone, i n  f a c t ,  i s  r e m a r r i e d ,  

for example,  and ha s  no a s s o c i a t i o n  w i t h  any of 

t h e s e  p a r t i c u l a r  p a r t i e s ,  and t h e  Cqur t ,  i f  I 

d i d  t e l l  M r .  Morales  t o  anawer i t ,  would, q u i t e  

f r a n k l y ,  s e a l  t h i s  p o r t i o n  of t h e  d e p o s i t i o n :  

a t  least  seal t h e  answer t o  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  

q u e s t i o n .  

I d o n ' t  want to go ahead and p u t  somebody 

i n  a p o s i t i o n  where a  t h i r d  p a r t y ,  a l t h o u g h  I 

d o n ' t  know--he may have f i r s t h a n d  knowledge, he  

may have seen  them t o g e t h e r ,  s h e  may have 

a d m i t t e d  t o  him t h a t  s h e  d i d ,  

MS, COHANt H e  h a s  a l r e a d y  t e s t i f i e d  he  d i d  

n o t ,  

THE COURT: That  he d i d  n o t  what? 

M S .  COHAN: See them t o g e t h e r .  

THE COURTt A l l  r i g h t .  

MR. WILLIAMSt Judge,  what I canno t  under-  

s t a n d ,  I canno t  unde r s t and  t h e  l e g a l  b a s i s  upon 

which some p e o p l e ,  who are ex t r eme ly  s i g n i f i c a n t  

p a r t i c i p a n t s  i n  t h i s  e i t u a t i o n ,  and i n  i t s  

development ,  i n  a  manner t h a t  is s u b s t a n t i a l l y  

more f a r - r e a c h i n g  t h a n  normal ly  comes i n t o  

t h e  c o u r t s  o f  t h i s  coun ty ,  a r e  b e i n g  g i v e n  



p r e r o g a t i v e s  and c o n s i d e r a t i o n s  by t h e  

p r o s e c u t o r ' s  o f f i c e  t h a t  under a l l  t h o s e  

c i r cums tances ,  wouldn ' t  even be c o n s i d e r e d  by 

t h e  p r o s e c u t o r &  . o r  by t h e  c o u r t ,  

THE COURT2 For  example? 

M S .  COHAN: L e t ' s  n o t  " f o r  example," 

Your Honor, I would ask f o r  a s p e c i f i c ,  

I d o n ' t  know Nancy Lamazares, 

THE COURT: When I s a y  " f o r  example," I 

a m  a s k i n g  f o r  a  s p e c i f i c .  

MR. WILLIAMS: A l l  r i g h t ,  

It i s  a p p a r e n t  t h a t  r e g a r d l e s s  o f  what t h e  

p r o s e c u t o r  aays ,  t h e  S t a t e ' s  i n t e n t i o n  h e r e  i s  

t o  s h i e l d  L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz,  because  nobody cou ld  

g i v e  a  hoo t  l e a 8  abou t  t h e  l i f e  and t i m e s  o f  

Nancy Lamaaares, 

THE COURT: No, s h e  s a y s  i t ' s  t o  s h i e l d  

Nancy Lama zares ' .  

MR. WILLIAMS : P i n e ,  Judge,  and I a m  

r e a l l y  touched and moved by t h a t ,  b u t  Nancy 

Lamaaares i s  a  woman whose name t h e  p r o a e c u t o r  

has  never  heard  up u n t i l  it came o u t  a t  aome 

p o i n t  i n  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t h i s  c a a e ,  

MS, COHAN: That  i s  i n c o r r e c t ,  

MR, WILLIAMS : (Cont inuing)  -- and i s  no 



1 1 0  

d i f f e r e n t  from any one o f  t h e  m i l l i o n  and a h a l f  

o t h e r  people  who walk t h e  s t r e e t a  o f  Dads 

County whose comings and goings  a r e  f a i r  game 

when it comes t o  t h e i r  be ing  p a r t i c i p a n t s  i n  

one o r  a n o t h e r  a s p e c t  o f  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  t h a t  g e t s  

t h e  a t t e n t i o n  of  l a w  enforcement i n  t h e  cou r t%,  

and f o r  t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  t o  s a y ,  a l l  o f  a sudden, 

t h a t  t h e  S t a t e ' i s  l i t i g a t i n g  t h i s  matter o u t  o f  

concern f o r  t h e  p r ivacy  o f  t h i s  person ,  who i s  a 

a t r a n g e r ,  i n  e f fec t ,  t o  t h e s e  p roceed ings ,  when 

r a p e  v i c t i m s  a r e  al lowed and r e q u i r e d  t o  t e s t i f y  

t o  i n t i m a c i e s  t h a t  occur red  i n  t h e i r  l i v e s  15  

y e a r s  p r e v i o u s l y ,  s imply because everybody t h i n k s  

i t ' s  a f a i r  t h i n g  t o  do,  i a ,  I t h i n k ,  a l i t t l e  

b i t  o f  hypocracy. 

M S .  COHAN: May I respond,  Your &onor, 

b r i e f l y ?  

THE COURT: Rather  t han  do t h a t ,  l e t  m e  

t e l l  you what my i n c l i n a t i o n  i s ,  and t h i s  i s  

t h e  way I am going t o  r u l e .  

I a m  going t o  r e q u i r e  him t o  answer t h e  

q u e s t i o n .  However- 

MS. COHAN: Can we g e t  him i n  h e r e  f o r  your 

r u l i n g ?  

THE COURTr Y e s ,  I w i l l  b r i n g  him i n  and 
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t e l l  him what t h e  r u l i n g  is. 

I am go ing  t o  r e q u i r e  him t o  answer t h e  

q u e s t i o n ,  b u t  I am go ing  t o  s e a l  t h e  answer.  

I f  i t  become8 n e c e s s a r y  o r  r e l e v a n t  d u r i n g  

any h e a r i n g  o r  f u r t h e r  p roceed ing  i n  c o u r t ,  

upon showing t h a t  i t  i s  by t h e  p a r t i e s  s e e k i n g  

t o  uee  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  s t a t e m e n t ,  t h e n ,  t h e  

c o u r t ,  o f  c o u r s e ,  w i l l  u n s e a l  it, b u t  t h i s  

accomplbshes what you b o t h  want.  

I t  accompl i shes - i t  a l l o w s  you, on your  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  t o  d i s c o v e r  m a t e r i a l  t h a t  you fee l  

w i l l  show t h a t  t h e  i n t e r r e l a t i o n s h i p  o f  a l l  

t h e s e  p a r t i e s ,  and pe rhaps  go t o  M r .  Mora les '  

c r e d i b i l i t y ,  and a t  t h e  same t i m e ,  it a f f o r d s  

t h e  State  t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t h a t ,  i f  t h i s  p a r -  

t i c a l a r  woman i s ,  i n  f a c t ,  someone who i s  

i n n o c e n t ,  and i n  f a c t ,  may have  had a r e l a t i o n s h i  

w i t h  any o f  t h e s e  p a r t i e s ,  t h a t  i s  n o t  m a t e r i a l  

a t  a l l  t o  t h i s  c a s e ,  and would a l s o  p r o t e c t  h e r  

a t  t h e  same t i m e .  

MR. WILLIAMS : I a s s u r e  you t h a - t  I h a o s n o  - 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

i n t e r e s t  o r  i n t e n t i o n  i n  g i v i n g  c u r r e n c y  t o  

any i n f o r m a t i o n  o r  t e s t imony  t h a t  Morales  might  

g i v e  t h a t  cou ld  b r i n g  embarrassment  o r  d i s -  

comfor t  t o  t h e  woman, who I have neve r  i n  my 

l i f e  met ,  and wouldn ' t  know i f  s h e ,  by t h e  way, 



came up and kicked me, 

M S .  COHAN: As I have  p r e v i o u s l y  i n d i c a t e d ,  

M r .  Wi l l i ams  c a n  subpoena L i e u t e n a n t  Raul  Diaz 

and a s k  him t h o s e  q u e s t i o n s ,  and t h e a ,  a t  t h a t  

t i m e ,  w e  w i l l  see where w e  a r e ,  

I have  no i n t e n t i o n  o f  s h i e l d i n g  L i e u t e n a n t  

Diaz from a subpoena o r  from r e s p o n d i n g  t o  any  

q u e s t i o n s  a s  I p r e v i o u s l y  i n d i c a t e d  d u r i n g  t h i s  

conbdrence .  
. . 

THE COURT: L e t t s  b r i n g  M r ,  Mora les  i n ,  

and I w i l l  t e l l  h i m  what  my r u l i n g  i s  g o i n g  t o  

b e ,  and t h e n ,  w e ' l l  go from t h e r e ,  

MS, COHAN: I f  t h i s  i s  g o i n g  t o  be s e a l e d ,  

, may I s u g g e s t  t h a t  t h e  answers  be g i v e n  down 

h e r e ,  b e c a u s e  i n  my a f f i c e  a r e  Frank C a s t r o ,  

Raul V i l l a v e r d e ,  C a r l o s  Quesada ,  and J o s e  Marcos,  

TEE COURT: May I s a y ,  I c a n ' t  h e l p  t h a t ,  

They a r e  d e f e n d a n t s  and t h e y  a r e  e n t i t l e d  t o  

be p r e s e n t  a t  any s t a g e  o f  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n .  

MS. CORANr I n c l u d i n g  t h i s  p o r t i o n ?  

THE COURT: Any p o r t i o n  o f  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ,  

T h i e  i s  s e a l e d  from p u b l i c  r ev iew.  

I c a n n o t  p r e v e n t  d e f e n d a n t s  from b e i n g  p r e a e n t  

a t  t h e  t a k i n g  o f  a d e p o s i t i o n .  They have  t h e  

a b s o l u t e  r i g h t  t o  be p r e s e n t .  



X am s u r e  . t h e y  a r e  n o t  go ing  t o  go o u t s i d e  

and t e l l  everybody i n  t h e  s t reet  a b o u t  i t ,  

( O f f i c e r  Puig  and Rica rdo  Morales  r e e n t e r e d  

t h e  room,) 

THE COURT: Okay. 

M r ,  Mora les ,  t h e  q u e s t t o n  t h a t  w a s  r e a d  back 

and Ma. R e p o r t e r ,  you w i l l  r e a d  it back a t  t h i s  

t i m e  t o  Mr, Morales ,  s o  he  w i l l  know what ques- 

t i o n  X am t a l k i n g  a b o u t ,  

(Whereupon, t h e  c e r t i f i e d  q u e s t i o n  was 

read i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d  by t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r , )  

THE COURT: Y b u v w i l l  answer t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

The C o u r t  i s  o r d e r i n g  you, a t  t h i s  t i m e ,  t o  

anawer t h a t  q u e a t i a n .  

X f  you f a i l  t o  answer t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  t h e n ,  

you w i l l  be  i n  contempt  of t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  

c o u r t ,  Do you u n d e r s t a n d ,  s i r ?  

THE WITNESS: Yea, 

M S .  COHAN: Would you a l s o  t e l l  him what 

p r o v i s i o n s  you have  made f o r  t h e  answer? 

THE COURT: Y e s .  Whatever t h e  answers  a r e  

t o  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  q u e s t i o n ,  t h e  c o u r t  i s  g o i n g  

t o  s e a l  t h e  answers ,  I n  o t h e r  words,  t h e y  w i l l  

n o t  be made a v a i l a b l e  t o  t h e  p u b l i c ,  u n l e s s  and 

i f  it i s  shown t o  t h e  c o u r t  l a t e r  on i n  t h e s e  



p r o c e e d i n g s ,  t h a t  t h e s e  m a t t e r s ,  i n  f a c t ,  a r e  

m a t e r i a l  and r e l e v a n t  t o  any p u b l i c  h e a r i n g ;  

by t h a t ,  I mean, a cour t room h e a r i n g  t h a t  may 

t a k e  p l a c e ,  

THE WITNESS: Yea, Somewhere i n -  

THE COURT: I d o n ' t  want you t o  answer 

t h e  q u e s t i o n  i n  f r o n t  o f  me, You w i l l  answer 

it when you go back u p s t a i r s ,  

Is t h e r e  a n y t h i n g  t h a t  you want t o  t e l l  m e  

a t  t h i s  t i m e ?  

THE WITNESS: W e l l ,  I was g o i n g  t o  answer 

t h e  q u e s t i o n  t o  you, 

THE COURT: Don't  answer i n  f r o n t  o f  m e ,  

They w i l l  t a k e  you u p s t a i r s ,  and you w i l l  

answer i n  f r o n t  o f  them, 

THE WITNESS: Your Honor, what  you want m e  

t o  Bay t h a t  I wa's a b l e  t o  t e l l  YOU? 

THE COURT: No, I j u s t  want you t o  answer  

t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  q u e s t i o n ,  

THE WITNESS: Okay, I w i l l  answer ,  

THE COURT: A l l  r i g h t ,  F i n e ,  

MR, WILLIAMS: May I be  excused?  

THE COURT: Y e s ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you, Your Honor, 

( O f f  t h e  r e c o r d , )  



(The q u e s t i o n s  and answers  which fo l lowed  

t h e  above and which would o t h e r w i s e  a p p e a r  h e r e  have 

been s e a l e d  by o r d e r  o f  Cour t .  The o r i g i n a l  t r a n s c r i p l  

o f  t h e s e  p r o c e e d i n g s  ha8 been d e l i v e r e d  t o  t h e  C o u r t  

u n d e r  s e a l ;  and c o p i e s  have been p r o v i d e d  t o  t h e  

f o l l o w i n g  c o u n s e l :  Rina Cohan, A s s i s t a n t  S t a t e  

A t t o r n e y ,  Douglas L ,  Wi l l i ams ,  E a q u i r c ,  and Edward 

R. C a r h a r t ,  E s q u i r e . )  

BY MR, WILLIAMS: 

0 L e t  m e  j u s t  c l o s e  o u t  t h i s  segment h e r e .  

Ricky,  you have answered t h e  c e r t a i n  

q ~ e 8 t i o n e  t h a t  t h e  c o u r t  s u g g e s t e d  t h a t  you answer.  

Now, a r e  t h e  answers  t h a t  you have g i v e n  

and whioh t h e  c o u r t  ha8  o r d e r e d  t o  be s e a l e d ,  mafd 

t h o s e  answers  a p p l y  t o  t h e  p o i n t  i n  t i m e  a t  o r  i n  

t h e  v i c i n f g y  o f  which you s h o t  E l a d i o  Ruia? 

Was t h a t  t r u e  back t h e n ?  

A I t  a p p l i e s  t o  my whole l i f e .  

(r Here's t h e  q u e s t i o n :  You j u a t  responded t o  

c e r t a i n  q u e s t i o n s  t h a t  t h e  c o u r t  t o l d  you t o  answer 

by d e s c r i b i n g  t h e  e x i s t e n c e  o f  a  a i t u a t i o n ;  okay? 

You know what I am s p e a k i n g  o f ?  

A I ' m  g o i n g  t o  make i t  s h o r t e r  f o r  you. 

()I Here's t h e  q u e s t i o n :  The s i t u a t i o n  t h a t  you 

have j u s t  described e x i s t s  a t  o r  a b o u t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  



you s h o t  and k i l l e d  E lad io  Ruiz? 

A Y e s .  

MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. L e t ' s  g e t  our 

schedule  s t r a i g h t  f o r  t h e  n e x t  c o u p l e  o f  days, 

( O f f  t h e  r e c o r d . )  

(Whereupon, a t  f i v e  o ' c l o c k  p,m. ,  the  

d e p o s i t i o n  was r e c e s s e d  u n t i l  Wednesday, A p r i l  7 ,  1982 

a t  t e n  o ' c l o c k  a.m.)  

- - - - 
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